Scripture Keys

for Your Soul Health



C. A. Gibson

Scripture Keys for Your Soul Health

Text copyright © 2024 C. A. Gibson

All rights reserved. This book or parts are intended to be shared and studied and thereof may be reproduced for personal use and stored electronically and shared with family, friends, and loved ones. This book may not be republished or used for monetary gain in any capacity without prior written permission of the publisher.

Cover design and all graphics were created in Canva by C. A. Gibson.

www.saltymo.com

ISBN: 978-1-964549-10-1

Scripture Keys

for Your Soul Health



C. A. Gibson

Additional Resources Also by C. A. Gibson

No Excuses for Your Best Life In Manageable Chunks

• Mind, Body, and Soul Answers & Solutions in Manageable Chunks so you can Adult like a Boss. Start where you are and achieve where you want to go in manageable chunks forward. No Excuses!

No Excuses for Your Best Life Workbook Journal

 Aesthetic, Lined Journal customized with all of the built in 'prompts' from Mind, Soul, Body Chunks to assist you with your Headspace Examination and goal mapping Your Best Life Journey.

No Excuses for Your Best Life Planner

Weekly and Monthly Calendar Planners to assist you with your Time Management ongoing! Whether you are on a self-care, selfdiscovery, active lifestyle, or family/home management journey, this interactive engagement calendar will help streamline your responsibilities and goals to keep you on track.

No Excuses for Your Best Life Journal

 Blank/Lined Notebook Journals Ideal for journaling, planning, goal tracking, note taking, or as a travel diary, this journal serves as a perfect companion for capturing memories, ideas, goals, and inspirations for Your Best Life Journey.

SaltyMO.com

For all current publications and information be sure to visit www.saltymo.com.

Contents

Introduction	1
Sources & References	6
Chapter One: In The Beginning	15
Chapter Two: God's Plan	25
Chapter Three: Satan's Plan	47
Satan's Overall Plan	49
Satan's Location & M.O.	51
Names of Satan	53
The Tree of Life & Tree of Death	58
Altering The Seedline	61
Rapture Plot	75
The Church	82
Antichrist	90
Chapter Four: Bits 'n' Bobs	95
Basic Calendar Facts	95
God's Calendar	96
Christmas Tradition	101
Easter vs Passover	107
God's Timeline	115
Parable of the Fig Tree	120
Trumps, Seals, & Vials	123
Epilogue	131

Introduction

NOT A CHRISTIAN? Weary of the Church System and its Doctrine? Burned out on Practiced Religion? Denomination Loyal? Practiced Buddhist? Staunch Evolutionist? Welcome all! This is about truth, knowledge, wisdom, understanding, universal principles, no bs traditions of man, no ridiculous rituals, always in agreement with science and history kinda place. Give it a shot and see for yourself.

Who Am I?

Quite right, who am I to put forth this information? I am no one. I do not claim to be better or wiser than anyone. I completely profess to be a student of God's Word and am only looking to share knowledge that I have gleaned from deep study in God's Word over the past 30+ years. I fully acknowledge that the understanding and knowledge that I have obtained is a blessing from God in providing me with teachers and tools over the years to lead me to a greater understanding of His Word. I completely adhere to the statement that: *For Everything that I am and Everything that I am yet to be, I owe to God! Thanks always be to Him!!!* Only through God's direction and guidance am I sharing this with you. Whether you dig

into God's Word to prove me *wrong* or to prove me *right*, it makes no difference as long as you are digging into God's Word and arriving at a deeper understanding of Him and His path for you! And always ask God for understanding as He will always provide. **Proverbs 1-4**

I Corinthians 4:7 For who maketh thee to differ from another? and what hast thou that thou didst not receive? now if thou didst receive it, why dost thou glory, as if thou hadst not received it?

A cult (and unfortunately some Christian institutions) tells you *what* to think, but a true ministry of God's Word and/or teacher and/or sharer of God's Word teaches you *how* to think for yourself in discernment!

If you are already saved in Christ and looking for deeper understanding of God's Word, I pray this book helps your journey and that God opens eyes and ears through this material!

If you are not yet saved in Christ, know that this author welcomes you in hopes that through the commonsense approach and information provided, it offers you answers to questions that have thus far been blocking your walk with Christ.

John 3:16 For God so loved the world, that He gave His only begotten Son, that whosoever believeth in Him should not perish, but have everlasting life.

What follows will demonstrate how the Bible is in full agreement with science by explaining the three earth/heaven ages as well as other issues that seem to be common stumbling blocks. There is no hypocrisy or using

the Scriptures to validate any preconceived objectives. All study is from the Scriptures with understanding of the subject/object/article used in God's Word so that nothing is taken out of context, as so often happens when people try to uphold and justify the traditions of men in lieu of the simplicity of God's Word. I will try to always provide at least two witnesses if not more of Scripture for any topic discussed.

Hebrews 5:12-14 For when for the time ye ought to be teachers, ye have need that one teach you again which be the first principles of the oracles of God; and are become such as have need of milk, and not of strong meat. For every one that useth milk is unskilful in the word of righteousness: for he is a babe. But strong meat belongeth to them that are of full age, even those who by reason of use have their senses exercised to discern both good and evil.

Paul was an excellent teacher of God's Word and was able to teach to both the beginner (the milk of Salvation) as well as the more mature and knowledgeable of God's Word (the meat of full age). This book will hopefully be able to do the same with God's direction and assistance. I have no affiliation nor represent anyone other than myself. I may reference teachers (such as The Shepherd's Chapel, Bullinger, Capt, etc.), but that is to only credit them with the knowledge they have led me to understand. Know however, that I do not take anyone's knowledge/understanding of God's Word at face value and always check out what they say in God's Word as His Word is the ultimate authority for my knowledge/understanding. I pray you do the same and that this book is only a tool you are able to use to gain deeper growth in the Bible.

I Corinthians 3 And I, brethren, could not speak unto you as unto spiritual, but as unto carnal, even as unto babes in Christ. I have fed you with milk, and not with meat: for hitherto ye were not able to bear it, neither yet now are ye able. For ye are yet carnal: for whereas there is among you envying, and strife, and divisions, are ye not carnal, and walk as men? For while one saith, "I am of Paul"; and another, "I am of Apollos"; are ye not carnal? Who then is Paul, and who is Apollos, but ministers by whom ye believed, even as the Lord gave to every man? I have planted, Apollos watered; but God gave the increase. So then neither is he that planteth any thing, neither he that watereth; but God That giveth the increase. Now he that planteth and he that watereth are one: and every man shall receive his own reward according to his own labour. For we are laborurers together with God: ye are God's husbandry, ye are God's building. According to the grace of God which is given unto me, as a wise masterbuilder, I have laid the foundation, and another buildeth thereon. But let every man take heed how he buildeth thereupon. For other foundation can no man lay than that is laid, which is Jesus Christ. Now if any man build upon this foundation gold, silver, precious stones, wood, hay, stubble; Every man's work shall be made manifest: for the day shall declare it, because it shall be revealed by fire; and the fire shall try every man's work of what sort it is. If any man's work abide which he hath built thereupon, he shall receive a reward. If any man's work shall be burned, he shall suffer loss: but he himself shall be saved; yet so as by fire. Know ye not that ye are the Temple of God, and that the Spirit of God dwelleth in you? If any man defile the Temple of God, him shall God destroy; for the Temple of God is holy, which temple ye are. Let no man deceive himself. If any man among you seemeth to be wise in this world, let him become a fool, that he may be wise. For the wisdom of this world is foolishness with God. For it is written, "He taketh the wise in their own craftiness." And again, "The Lord knoweth the thoughts of the wise, that they are vain." Therefore let no man glory in men. For all things are yours; Whether Paul, or Apollos, or Cephas, or the world, or life, or death, or things present, or things to come; all are yours; And ye are Christ's; and Christ is God's.

The milk of salvation is awesome, but beyond that milk we need to mature to eat the meat of God's Word with understanding. We need to follow God and God's Word and teachings and not that of man. To be invested in the riches and knowledge of the world is to be ignorant and foolish in the knowledge of God. Be in the world, not of the world. We are all one many, membered body in Christ and dwelling there in one thought of mind is more peaceful and more profitable on earth and in Heaven than anything Satan or this world has to offer. The only thing you can take with you are your good works (and your unrepented sins) so anything gained of this world is fruitless in the next.

Colossians 2:8 Beware lest any man spoil you through philosophy and vain deceit, after the tradition of men, after the rudiments of the world, and not after Christ:

I John 2:15-17 Love not the world, neither the things that are in the world. If any man love the world, the love of the Father is not in him. For all that is in the world, the lust of the flesh, and the lust of the eyes, and the pride of life, is not of the Father, but is of the world. And the world passeth away, and the lust therof: but he that doeth the will of God abideth for ever.

I Peter 3:15 But sanctify the Lord God in your hearts: and be ready always to give an answer to every man that asketh you a reason of the hope that is in you, with meekness and fear:

God Bless!

Sources & References

I CREDIT AND utilize The Shepherd's Chapel's teachings (Pastors Arnold and Dennis Murray), E.W. Bullinger's works, and *The Bullinger King James Companion Bible* notes and appendices, *The New Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible*, and E. Raymond Capt's works and books -are-ALL primarily my sources (keys) to understanding God's Word. I credit God for His guidance in my understanding and abilities to put this information forth to you. For everything I know, am, and do I owe to God!

Tools & Resources For Study

First and Foremost, I highly recommend **The Companion Bible**, **King James Version**. (Sometimes referred to as **The Bullinger King James Companion Bible**.) If not *The Companion Bible*, then just a *King James Version Bible*. Why the KJV over newer translations? I compare it to the gossip chain ... the further you get from the original (in this case the original Manuscripts) the less original truth you have in it. The unfortunate situation is that most bookstores and Christian stores

do not stock this extremely valuable resource (The Companion Bible). However, there are some online stores which carry it: christianbooks.com and amazon.com (The Shepherd's Chapel also has it available from their bookstore at shepherdschapel.com), both in standard and large size print versions. There is also a free online, downloadable version on my website at saltymo.com.

Note that, even with the KJV, as with anything done by man, some mistranslations from the Hebrew/Greek to English exist. One such example is the use of "fear" in some places of the Bible (e.g., fear God) where it should have been translated "revere" (e.g., revere God). The Companion Bible does a good job of pointing these out to you.

Deuteronomy 10:12 And now, Israel, what doth the Lord thy God require of thee, but to **fear** the Lord thy God, to walk in all His ways, and to love Him, and to serve the Lord thy God with all thy heart and with all thy soul.

In places where "fear" is utilized in reference to God it usually means "revere" not fear. In this verse "fear" is the Hebrew word yare (Strong's 3372) which can mean fear or revere. To love God is to revere Him and His Word. To not love or follow God, then, there will be at some point fear. Make no mistake, God wants our love and reverence.

Hosea 6:6 For I desired mercy, and not sacrifice; and the knowledge of God more than burnt offerings.

The Companion Bible "provides self-explanatory notes to greatly aid the serious Bible student in gaining the most possible from the Bible with special attention to the intent of the original Bible languages as found in the Massoretic Hebrew Old Testament Text and the Greek Received Texts. A great many of the notes from the Massorah are also included. The amount of overall information provided is vast. References are given when the English language does not convey the full intent of the original Hebrew/Aramaic/ Greek languages. Figures of speech and idioms are specially noted. The spiritual significance of numbers are pointed out. First occurrences of important words are noted. Eastern manners and customs are explained as needed to throw light on the Scriptures. The meanings of Proper Names of persons or places are given where these are suggestive. Money, coins, weights and measures are referred to in every case. Chronology is explained for Biblical years which are often found in durations rather than dates. Structures of the Books are given as a guide to interpretation and proof of their Inspiration. This great Bible is not a commentary, but rather provides all the information possible to allow the Bible student to learn God's Word directly without interference from preconceived traditions of men." (The Shepherd's Chapel)

198 Appendixes of The Companion Bible is an "unparalleled amount of information by subject matter placed in order in which the subjects are raised in the Text of the Bible. With topics too numerous to name here these appendixes contain so much useful Bible background information that will provide many hours of additional relevant study." (The Shepherd's Chapel)

Ethelbert William Bullinger (E. W. Bullinger) was born on December 15, 1837, in Canterbury, England. Educated at King's College, London, he was noted broadly for three works: *A Critical Lexicon and Concordance to the English and Greek New Testament* (1877); for his ground-breaking and exhaustive work on *Figures of Speech Used in the Bible* (1898); and as the

primary editor of *The Companion Bible* (published in 6 parts, beginning in 1909; The Archbishop of Canterbury granted him an honorary Doctor of Divinity degree in 1881 in recognition of his Biblical scholarship.

The New Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible Indexed to the KJV text and cross-references to Hebrew and Greek Dictionaries. "The Strong's Exhaustive Concordance (Strong's) was first published in 1890 by Dr. James Strong who spent more than 35 years preparing it with the help of more than 100 linguists. It is perhaps the most copied Bible reference tool ever published. This work bridges the gap for the serious Bible student who does not have Hebrew and Greek language skills but desires to understand the intent of the original Bible languages as found in the Massoretic Hebrew Old Testament Text and the Greek Received New Testament Text. This accomplishment was achieved by Dr. Strong as he developed a complete concordance of English language words found in the King James Bible and then meticulously cross-referenced each to the original Hebrew/Chaldee and Greek words used in the original language received manuscripts." (The Shepherd's Chapel)

Note that not all *Strong's* are "strong", as they have been as tinkered with as have the various translations (transliterations) of the Bible itself. The problem lies in the dilution of this great work and words deleted or altogether misrepresented. As I have gotten burned myself by purchasing *Strong's* from local bookstores and/or Christian stores, I now only purchase from one resource (The Shepherd's Chapel). If you already have a *Strong's*, one test to see if it is a "strong" version is if it contains the following:

Kenite = Strong's 7014 in the Hebrew/Chaldee Dictionary = Qayin as being a descendant of Cain

- ➤ **Touch** = *Strong's* 5060 in the Hebrew/Chaldee Dictionary = naga as being to lie with a woman
- ➤ **Beguiled** = 5377 in the Hebrew/Chaldee Dictionary = nasha as being led astray; seduced or 7411 = ramah as being betrayed; deceived; or 1818 in the Greek Dictionary = expatao as being seduced wholly

Smith's Bible Dictionary featuring definitions of Biblical terms and details about the Bible in general. "Faithful to the original nineteenth century 4 volume work by Dr. William Smith, this single volume abridgment is the work of Francis N. Peloubet and his wife Mary Abby Peloubet. For many decades this book has earned its reputation as a comprehensive and conservative based dictionary reference tool of the Bible. No other Bible dictionary offers more thorough information in such a handy reference form. The Smith's Bible Dictionary covers details and meanings about proper names, prophets, priests, kings, queens, tribes and nations along with traditions, customs and manners mentioned in the Bible. Additionally, various idols and gods are listed along with trees, herbs, flowers, vines, grains, clean and unclean animals. Ancillary subjects such as money, coins, weights and measures, diseases, illnesses and musical instruments are covered as well." (The Shepherd's Chapel)

A good **Bible Atlas** is such a helpful resource that aids in bringing the Bible times, locations, battles, etc., into full focus during your study. I have numerous ones I have used over the years including online resources. Find what works for you, but I strongly suggest using one rather than glossing over names, as it makes such a difference in your comprehension of the subject matter.

There are so many books I have utilized in my study and understanding, but the aforementioned are the primary. Other resources such as the line of E. Raymond Capt books on the *Abrahamic Covenant* and the scatterings of the Israelites after their captivities, where they are now, and how God's promises and covenants are still very much in existence today. A list of Capt's books are listed herein.

The Shepherd's Chapel is where I have gotten a great deal (to most) of my study resources. They can be found at shepherdschapel.com or by phone at 800-643-4645 or by mail at P. O. Box 416, Gravette, AR 72736 and request their free introductory offer including **Book List**.

The Shepherd's Chapel is the church I have studied with since 1991. The pastor was Arnold Murray (until he passed away in 2014, but his teachings are still available online and through the Chapel), and currently is his son, Dennis Murray. They do not receive a salary as most ministries do. Pastor Arnold Murray said that was his agreement with God in the beginning, that he would teach His Word, but he would not take a salary for it. The Murrays make their living with other jobs/means. The tithe that folks give to the Chapel pays for the satellite/cable airtime, etc. You can check them out further at their website where you'll find their *Statement of Faith* and *Answer to the Critics*. As with anyone truly doing God's work, you'll find a lot of false and negative garbage online about the Chapel and Pastor Murray, hence his *Answer to the Critics*. If you dig into God's Word to check Pastor Murray's teachings out (as anyone should do anyway) you'll be able to discern for yourself the truth.

On the website, you can listen to daily Bible studies (via download or streaming), or you can watch them daily on cable or satellite (just look at your local listings to find them) or you can watch them on *YouTube*. The

Chapel archives one weeks' worth of daily studies at a time. Note, that one week of every month the Chapel airs their Sunday service topical lectures. You can also order full studies from the Chapel, or just download them to listen to later.

One other note on Shepherd's Chapel's teachings. The Murrays teach Chapter by Chapter and Verse by Verse of each Book of the Bible. This is an important distinction, in that their teachings are not based on traditions of men or man's agenda, but from the very Word of God and God's Message with nothing taken out of context. Again, don't take my word for this ... check out for yourself anything that is stipulated herein or that comes from anyone else, as your journey with God is yours and you are responsible for your knowledge. You will only know what's what if you dig it out for yourself!

Why are some of these resources so much more difficult to find versus the commonplace in Christian bookstores, etc., across America? I believe for the same reasons that some of the information that I share is scarcely taught in the churches of today. In *Revelation*, God was only pleased with two of the seven churches; mathematically stated, He was only pleased with less than a third of the churches' teachings. But hey, anything worth knowing is worth working for and anything worth having is worth searching for.

Resources List

- (Bullinger King James Version) The Companion Bible
- The New Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible
- Deluxe Then and Now Bible Maps from Rose Publishing

- Holman Bible Atlas
- > Smith's Bible Dictionary
- Newton's Revised History of Ancient Kingdoms
- Apocrypha by Edgar J. Goodspeed
- ➤ Judah's Sceptre/Joseph's Birthright by J.H. Allen
- One Man's Destiny by C.R. Dickey
- > Drama of the Lost Disciples by George F. Jowett
- Rapture Plot by Dave MacPherson
- ➤ *Incredible Cover-Up* by Dave MacPherson
- Sargon the Magnificent by Sydney Bristowe
- St. Paul in Britain by R.W. Morgan
- Strange Parallel by Helene Kopajan
- Dan the Pioneers of Israel by Colonel J.C. Gawler
- America B.C. by Dr. Barry Fell
- Celt, Druid & Culdee by I.H. Elder
- ➤ Biblical Mathematics by Ed F. Vallowe
- Number in Scripture by E.W. Bullinger

Books by E. Raymond Capt

E. Raymond Capt, M.A., A.I.A., F.S.A. Scotland, was a Biblical archaeologist, Christian historian, and author of many publications. Listed below are the ones in which I have read (some more than one time through) and have found extremely helpful in my understanding of Biblical truths in history. As with anyone, Capt doesn't get everything correct regarding Biblical understanding or dating, but his work is invaluable for the truths and agreements he has dug out and put forth. I have starred the ones that

I have found particularly key for me connecting the dots in discovering God's Truth in the Bible, history, and science.

- ➤ Abrahamic Covenant*
- ► Gemstones in the Breastplate
- ► Glory of the Stars
- Great Pyramids Decoded
- > Jacob's Pillar*
- ➤ King Solomon's Temple*
- Lost Chapter of Acts
- ➤ Missing Links Discovered in Assyrian Tablets*
- ➤ Our Great Seal*
- ➤ Petra*
- Scottish Declaration of Independence*
- Study in Pyramidology
- ➤ Stonehenge and Druidism*
- > Traditions of Glastonbury

Resource for Children

"Discovering God's Natural Truth" by Phyllis McCullough Downing is a Bible study book designed for children and "assists parents in teaching God's overall plan". This is available from The Shepherd's Chapel.

Chapter OneIn The Beginning

THE WORLD THAT was AND the creation of the world that is this 2nd earth age. In The Beginning There was God. If you have never heard about the 1st earth/heaven age, then you have not understood the beginning. Learn about the beginning to unlock the rest of Scripture. In The Beginning ... Became Void & Without Form (tohu va-bohu). Read the Bible just as you would anything else and follow the subject and object and then there will be no misunderstanding it. God's simplicity is as great as is His Truth.

There is much debate over "the beginning" and how it all came about, how old the earth is, etc. The truly great thing about taking the Word back to the original languages and reading with understanding the subject and object of everything written, and not taking anything out of context, is that God's Word absolutely aligns with true and validated science without the need for "making" anything fit where it doesn't, or inventing science that isn't science (*theory* that hasn't been proven isn't science, it's a belief system). Evolution is just as much a belief system as those who believe in God the Creator and Creationism. The confusion for those on both

sides of these belief systems lies in the misunderstanding of those first two simply stated verses in **Genesis**. No need for conflict, just understanding.

Genesis 1:1-2 In the beginning God created the heaven and the earth. And the earth was without form, and void; and darkness was upon the face of the deep.

Let me get this part out of the way and then we will delve into the w-h-a-t of it all. There are three earth and heaven ages: (1st earth age) that which was in the beginning and was destroyed, (2nd earth age) that which is now in the present, and (3rd earth age) that which is yet to come in the eternity. The earth/heaven age that was, that first age, is what is spoken of in those first two verses. The earth/heaven age that is now, that second age, is what is covered in the rest of **Genesis** on the recreation of the earth. The earth/heaven age that is to come, that third and final age, is what is covered in the Scriptures of prophecy about the eternity after the Millennium and Judgment Day.

Peter, Jeremiah, and **Proverbs** all also speak of the 1st Earth Age. Note that, the flood mentioned in **II Peter 3:5-6** is not Noah's flood, as God did not destroy the whole earth during that flood, just the wicked population. What is spoken of in **II Peter 3:5-13** is the total destruction of that 1st Earth Age as well as the end of the 2nd Earth Age and the beginning of the new 3rd Earth Age to come.

II Peter 3:5-13 For this they willingly are ignorant of, that by the word of God the heavens were of old, and the earth standing out of the water and in the water: Whereby the world that then was, being overflowed with water,

perished: But the heavens and the earth which are now, by the same word are kept in store, reserved unto fire against the day of judgment and perdition of ungodly men. But, beloved, be not ignorant of this one thing, that one day is with the Lord as a thousand years, and a thousand years as one day. The Lord is not slack concerning His promise, as some men count slackness; but is longsuffering to us-ward, not willing that any should perish, but that all should come to repentance. But the day of the Lord will come as a thief in the night; in the which the heavens shall pass away with a great noise, and the elements shall melt with fervent heat, the earth also and the works that are therein shall be burned up. Seeing then that all these things shall be dissolved, what manner of persons ought ye to be in all holy conversation and godliness, Looking for and hasting unto the coming of the day of God, wherein the heavens being on fire shall be dissolved, and the elements shall melt with fervent heat? Nevertheless we, according to His promise, look for new heavens and a new earth, wherein dwelleth righteousness.

Jeremiah 4:22-23 For My people is foolish, they have not known Me; they are sottish children, and they have none understanding: they are wise to do evil, but to do good they have no knowledge. I beheld the earth, and, lo, it was without form, and void; and the heavens, and they had no light.

In this verse, just as in the verses above in **Genesis**, it is speaking of that 1st Earth Age. **Jeremiah** goes on in that chapter discussing God's anger and the total destruction of that first age. The word in **Genesis 1:2** "was" should have been translated properly as "became" and the words "without form" as "waste" from the Manuscripts and would therefore read: **the earth BECAME WASTE**, and void. The earth that then was became nothing, and then God decided to rebuild it, hence the subsequent chapters on just

that. In Jeremiah 4:23 the words "without form, and void" are the very same from Genesis and in the Hebrew is tohu va-bohu. The earth that then was became void and without form, everything about that age was destroyed (unlike Noah's flood). [For there to be something that "became void and without form", then logic dictates there was something prior to be voided.] God destroyed that first age as a result of Satan's fall (the katabole) and chose to rebuild the second age for His children to have free will choice without prior knowledge of that first age. It is the choices we make in this second age that determine our time in the third age.

Hebrews 12:25-26 See that ye refuse not Him That speaketh. For if they escaped not who refused Him That spake on earth, much more shall not we escape, if we turn away from Him That speaketh from heaven: Whose voice then shook the earth: but now He hath promised saying, "Yet once more I shake not the earth only, but also heaven."

God shook the earth once (Satan's fall and the end of the 1st Earth Age) and He will shake it again (just prior to the 3rd Earth Age). Some resulting science from the destruction of the 1st Earth Age: Magnetic north (pole) is 90 miles off from true north. I believe that the Continental Drift theory can be proven with the shaking of the earth at that time as well as the sudden destruction and fossilization of the dinosaurs. The scientific, determined age of this earth in opposition to the age of this 2nd Earth Age from its creation in **Genesis 1:3-31** are resolved in the knowledge of a 1st Earth Age, which in its destruction has also provided our fossil fuels, etc.

In The Beginning ... Satan's Overthrow

God did not create this earth void and without form ... He created it to be inhabited. It was then destroyed because of Satan's overthrow (katabole). **Ezekiel 28** speaks about Satan himself and what is going to happen to him. It is broken into two sections: 1) Prince of Tyre after his fall / Prince against Messiah; and 2) Before his fall and him being King of Tyrus. Specifically, **Ezekiel 28:13-26** is on the earth that was and addressing Satan's fall. Satan was that great and anointed cherub that covereth the Mercy Seat. The one who loved himself before God and influenced a third of God's children to follow him rather than God.

Became Void & Without Form (tohu va-bohu)

First, for those that didn't catch the color coding above, then know that, I was trying to simplify the verses and alert you to the different earth ages. Where appropriate, I used brown for the 1st earth age, green for the 2nd earth age, and blue for the 3rd earth age. So, a little more on *tohu va-hohu*:

In Genesis 1:1 it says that "In the beginning God created the heaven and the earth." PERIOD ... Let's just go with God not creating a vast void mess and instead that billions of years ago God created a beautiful and wonderful creation full of His children and even dinosaurs. In Genesis 1:2 that beautiful creation became void and without form. "And the earth was without form, and void; and darkness was upon the face of the deep." "Was" in this verse is the Hebrew word hayah meaning to exist, i.e., be or become, come to pass (Strong's 1961). In most places the word "was" is correctly transliterated "became" hayah) such as in Genesis 2:7. In both

of these verses, it is the same Hebrew word "hayah" just in one place it was transliterated incorrectly "was" and in the other correctly "became". The second use of "was" in Genesis 1:2 per Bullinger "is in italic type" (in The Bullinger King James Version Companion Bible) "because there is no verb "to be" in Hebrew" (reference Appendix 7 of The Bullinger King James Version Companion Bible).

"Without" in Genesis 1:2 is the Hebrew word tohuw (or tohu) meaning to lie waste, void (Strong's 8414). Notice the difference in this word versus other uses of "without" in Genesis (such as that of Strong's 2351 chuwts / ehuts meaning to sever, separate). It's helpful to be able to take these words back to the original Hebrew (and Greek in the New Testament) so as to know the intended meaning as there are some instances where they were mistransliterated from the original Manuscripts making the true meaning hidden unless you search it out to know them! "Form" in Genesis 1:2 is this same Hebrew word tohuw (Strong's 8414) and "void" is the Hebrew word bohuw (or bohu) meaning emptiness, void.

So, if we put the correct Hebrew transliterations in **Genesis 1:2** it reads: <u>And the earth became waste</u>, <u>and void</u>; <u>and darkness to be upon the face of the deep</u>.

In **Jeremiah 4:23** the words "without form, and void" are the very same Hebrew words dissected above from **Genesis 1:2** ... The earth that then was became void and without form.

Isaiah 45:18-19 For thus saith the Lord That created the heavens; God Himself That formed the earth and made it; He hath established it, He created it not in vain, He formed it to be inhabited: "I am the Lord; and there is none else. I have not spoken in secret, in a dark place of the earth: I said not unto

the seed of Jacob, 'Seek ye Me in vain:' I the Lord speak righteousness, I declare things that are right.

God did not create the earth void and without form. He created it to be inhabited and it became void and without form. There is evidence all-around of the age of this earth from the 1st earth age to the present. This earth is billions of years old, but this earth age (this 2nd earth age) is only thousands of years old. Praise be to God as *science* has no argument with the True Word of God!



Spiritual & Flesh Bodies

All souls were created in the 1st earth age, and we all resided in our spiritual bodies there. The spiritual body is in a different dimension than these flesh bodies, but they are similar and represent us as we are in these flesh bodies. While there is no gender in Heaven, our very essence follows us in either dimension. Our souls are our "self", and our spirit is the intellect of our souls.

Genesis 1:26-27 And God said, "Let Us make man in Our image, after Our likeness: and let them have dominion over the fish of the sea, and over the fowl of the air, and over the cattle, and over all the earth, and over every creeping thing that creepeth upon the earth." So God created man in His own image, in the image of God created He him; male and female created He them.

The "US" were God's children (us) in our spiritual bodies with Him in heaven. God created all souls in that 1st earth age. We are created in our very images of our spiritual bodies just as Christ is "God with us" in the flesh on earth, we are our spiritual bodies here in the flesh on earth.

I Corinthians 15:44 It is sown a natural body; it is raised a spiritual body. There is a natural body, and there is a spiritual body.

Ecclesiastes 12:6-7 Or ever the silver cord be loosed, or the golden bowl be broken, or the pitcher be broken at the fountain, or the wheel broken at the cistern. Then shall the dust return to the earth as it was: and the spirit shall return unto God Who gave it.

Once we die in these flesh bodies, we instantly return to God in our spiritual bodies. These flesh bodies are where our souls reside until the flesh dies and then our soul resides in our spiritual bodies in that wonderful dimension with God. This is why God would say in **I Corinthians 15:50** that while in the flesh we cannot see God as He is in a different dimension.

II Corinthians 5:6-8 Therefore we are always confident, knowing that, whilst we are at home in the body, we are absent from the Lord: (For we walk by faith, not by sight:) We are confident, I say, and willing rather to be absent from the body, and to be present with the Lord.

So, once we die in the flesh we are in our spiritual bodies in Heaven. But wait, Judgment Day hasn't yet occurred. Where is everyone now? There is a gulf dividing those with God and those away from God. This isn't "purgatory" or hell as such, but a simple division between those having committed certain sins on earth in the flesh and who await the Millennium and Judgment Day as we all do. The story of Lazarus and the rich man relay this to us nicely: **Luke 16:19-31**

None of this is reincarnation. We do not live in these flesh bodies multiple times, just once in the flesh for the reasons given.



Jacob I Loved & Esau I Hated ... In The Womb? Not Exactly....

Malachi 1:1-3 The burden of the word of the Lord to Israel by Malachi. "I have loved you, saith the Lord. Yet ye say, 'Wherein hast Thou loved us?' Was not Esau Jacob's brother? saith the Lord: yet I loved Jacob, And I hated Esau, and laid his mountains and his heritage waste for the dragons of the wilderness.

Romans 9:13 As it is written, "Jacob have I loved, but Esau have I hated."

These Scriptures are not about God hating an embryo. God despised Esau for who he was and what he did in the 1st earth age. If Esau had changed in the 2nd earth age, he could have changed God's feelings about him surely. Judgment is with God and God alone, so only He can

determine if the changes in the 2nd earth age and those potentially to come in the Millennium will add to him (or anyone) favor on Judgment Day.

Hebrews 12:16-17 Lest there be any fornicator, or profane person, as Esau, who for one morsel of meat sold his birthright. For ye know how that afterward, when he would have inherited the blessing, he was rejected: for he found no place of repentance, though he sought it carefully with tears.

Chapter Two God's Plan

THE 2ND AND 3RD Earth Ages and the Key of David are needed to understand God's Plan: The purpose for God's Plan was enacted with choices made by His children in the 1st earth/heaven age. The whole reason for this current 2nd earth age, and the 3rd earth age to come, is to provide His children with the most opportunity to be with Him in the eternity.

God's Plan: Why The 2nd Earth Age?

So why are we in these flesh bodies in this 2nd earth age anyway? Well, let's look at it like this: God is our Heavenly Father (our Creator), and we are His children (and creation). He had a choice to make when Satan deceived a third of His children. He could have destroyed that one third to two thirds of His children, or He could have given them a second chance (as it were) to choose Him. As a parent myself, I must tell you that I completely understand this impossible choice. What parent would ever choose to destroy a child, ever? I say one third to two thirds because a third outright chose Satan, but another third was on the fence, so to

speak. Only a solid third of God's children stood by Him. The other side of this impossible choice is that God (like anyone) wants true love and relationship. He does not want fake or forced admiration. He wants reverence not fear. The only just way then for His children to ultimately choose God or Satan was for Him to provide them an opportunity to exist without foreknowledge of that first earth age ... and hence this 2nd earth age, where all souls (minus Satan) from that 1st earth age are to be born of woman, in the flesh without such knowledge of any of the events that took place previously in the 1st earth age. We are here to make a choice between God or Satan, good or evil, a once and for all choice. So, there you have it, God chose to destroy that 1st earth age instead of destroying any of His children.

Revelation 12:4 And his tail drew the third part of the stars of heaven, and did cast them to the earth: and the dragon stood before the woman which was ready to be delivered, for to devour her child as soon as it was born.

Satan is that dragon and the stars are God's children.

Jeremiah 1:5 "Before I formed thee in the belly I knew thee; and before thou camest forth out of the womb I sanctified thee, and I ordained thee a prophet unto the nations."

John 3:3-13 Jesus answered and said unto him, "Verily, verily, I say unto thee, Except a man be born again, he cannot see the kingdom of God." Nicodemus saith unto Him, "How can a man be born when he is old? can he enter the second time into his mother's womb, and be born?" Jesus answered, "Verily, verily, I say unto thee, Except a man be born of water and of the spirit,

he cannot enter into the kingdom of God. That which is born of the flesh is flesh; and that which is born of the Spirit is spirit. Marvel not that I said unto thee, Ye must be born again. The wind bloweth where it listeth, and thou hearest the sound thereof, but canst not tell whence it cometh, and whither it goeth: so is every one that is born of the Spirit." Nicodemus answered and said unto Him, "How can these things be?" Jesus answered and said unto him, "Art thou a master of Israel, and knowest not these things? Verily, verily, I say unto thee, We speak that we do know, and testify that we have seen; and ye receive not our witness. If I have told you earthly things, and ye believe not, how shall ye believe, if I tell you of heavenly things? And no man hath ascended up to heaven, but He That came down from heaven, even the Son of man Which is in heaven.

This is not referring to "baptism" but referring to water birth (birth through the womb (water sac) of woman) in this 2nd earth age. Born again is "born from above" (the Greek word is **anothen** *Strong's* 509 and is "from above"), and we are required to come through this flesh age in order to choose and to be judged on whether we can be in the spirit in eternity with God. The 7,000 fallen angels bypassed the flesh birth and have consequently been sentenced to eternal death (death of the soul) along with Satan at the end of this 2nd earth age and Millennium.

I Peter 1:23 Being born again, not of corruptible seed, but of incorruptible, by the word of God, which liveth and abideth for ever.

Corruptible are these flesh bodies and incorruptible are our spiritual bodies. The 2nd death is that of the spiritual bodies, our very souls and that will not be decided on until Judgment Day.

Hebrews 9:27 And as it is appointed unto men once to die, but after this the judgment:

God's Plan: 2nd Earth Age Creation

So, after the katabole (Satan's overthrow) and the destruction of the 1st earth age, God prepared this 2nd earth age to be inhabited by His children (in the flesh). **Genesis 1** covers this preparation; as well as the creation of these flesh bodies and all the races of mankind in **Genesis 1:26-31**

In **Genesis 1:26** God says, "Let Us make man in Our image, after our likeness" and in **Genesis 1:27** it stipulates that "So God created man in His own image, in the image of God created He him; male and female created He them." We are created in the image of our spiritual bodies.

In **Genesis 1:28** it states that "And God blessed them, and God said unto them, "Be fruitful, and multiply, and **replenish** the earth" ... "replenish" ... repopulate the earth as it was in the 1st earth age. If there had not been a population prior to this 2nd earth age, then there would not be anything to **re**populate or **re**plenish.

Genesis 1:31 And God saw every thing that He had made, and, behold, it was very good. And the evening and the morning were the sixth day.

God was pleased with everything and with all of the races, "it was very good." The 6th day creations were many but did not include the set aside man of Adam (*eth-Ha adham* in the Hebrew, meaning the very specific man). Adam was formed (not just created) on the 8th day. The distinction and why Adam was set apart, both in location as well as day

formed, is because his seedline would be the seedline to Christ, and it had to be protected. Eve was made from Adam's DNA (stated "rib" in **Genesis 2:21**). The Bible is the genealogy of Christ and how Satan has tried to impact it over the years. Eve is called "the mother of all living" in **Genesis 3:20** because through her seedline (womb) Christ would come, and only through Him can we have everlasting, eternal life.

Genesis 2:21 "rib" (in my opinion is referring specifically to) = DNA = deoxy**rib**onucleic acid which is a self-replicating material present in nearly all living organisms and carrier of genetic information. DNA looks like a long double stranded helical molecule (twisted ladder ... helix curve). God took Adam's DNA to create Eve. The Hebrew word "rib" means "to curve" (*Strong's 6763 / 6760*).

The age of this 2nd earth age is quite different than the age of this earth (taking into account the previous 1st earth age years making the *earth* billions and billions of years old in agreement with science). There are two schools of thought on the exact age of this 2nd earth age: If a day with the Lord is as a 1,000 years as stated in **II Peter 3:8**, then this 2nd earth age is roughly 13,000 years old. If, however, we say **the day**(s) are specific 24-hour periods in the specified six days of creation, then this 2nd earth age is roughly 6,000 years old.



Free Will or Predestination

God will not interfere in the life of anyone with freewill, but He will lead, guide, and direct anyone who asks Him to (and is following Him); and, also, anyone with predestination. So, what's the deal with predestination

and freewill? A third of God's children in the 1st earth age followed Him outright and stood against Satan (with a third choosing Satan, and the remaining third were wishy washy undecided). These third that chose God, God knows He can count on without question. These third are not "special" and not "prejudged" for their actions in this 2nd earth age, just that they earned their stripes (so to speak) in that 1st earth age, and because of their choice and actions in that 1st earth age, they are predestined in this 2nd earth age to bring forward God's Plan through His direction and interference in their lives (such as the prophets for example). These "predestined" are God's Elect. Again, not better than anyone else, just directed based on their decisions and actions in the 1st earth age. These Elect throughout history and ongoing until Christ's returning in the 7th Trump carry out God's Plan and bring forth His Truth through His interference in their lives and His direction.

Ephesians 1:4-5 According as He hath chosen us in Him before the foundation of the world, that we should be holy and without blame before Him in love: Having predestinated us unto the adoption of children by Jesus Christ to Himself, according to the good pleasure of His will,

The "foundation of the world" is that katabole ... end of the 1st earth age. So based on their actions prior to this 2nd earth age, God predestinated them in this 2nd earth age.

Romans 8:28-30 And we know that all things work together for good to them that love God, to them who are the called according to His purpose. For whom He did foreknow, He also did predestinate to be conformed to the image of His Son, that He might be the firstborn among many brethren. Moreover

whom He did predestinate, them He also called: and whom He called, them He also justified: and whom He justified, them He also glorified.

Romans 8:33 Who shall lay anything to the charge of God's elect? It is God That justifieth;

Romans 11:5 Even so then at this present time also there is a remnant according to the election of grace.

Also, among others not mentioned: Romans 11 & II Timothy 3:14-15

Part of that third that stood for God in the 1st earth age were the "first" to stand and will also come "last" to stand in the end of this 2nd earth age. They stood against Satan in the 1st earth age and will be of the last generation who will once again stand against Satan as Antichrist.

Specifically, the third of God's children that chose God in the 1st earth/ heaven age are split into two aspects. The first being the Remnant, and they are those that come prior to the end (the Prophets as an example). The Remnant are who bring God's Truth and Plan forward to the end. The second being the Elect that come at the end. Those are the first (to stand in the 1st earth/heaven age) that will be the 'last' to come in this 2nd earth age (to stand against Satan as Antichrist). God knows that the Elect did not fall for Satan in the 1st earth/heaven age and they are best suited (having already "tested out") with God's direction to stand in the 6th Trump against Satan's lies and deception.

Matthew 20:16 So the last shall be first, and the first last: for many be called, but few are chosen.

Luke 13:30 And, behold, there are last which shall be first, and there are first which shall be last."

Eyes To See & Ears To Hear

Romans 8:24-26 For we are saved by hope: but hope that is seen is not hope: for what a man seeth, why doth he yet hope for? But if we hope for that we see not, then do we with patience wait for it. Likewise the Spirit also helpeth our infirmities: for we know not what we should pray for as we ought: but the Spirit Itself maketh intercession for us with groanings which cannot be uttered.

- verse 24 is written to God's elect. If you want to be bound by hope then be careful what you ask God to reveal to you, because once it is revealed, it is reality and not hope or faith.
- verse 25-26 relays that God will help the elect with their weaknesses. He will move them to do what He wants done.

Romans 11:7-8 What then? Israel hath not obtained that which he seeketh for; but the election hath obtained it, and the rest were blinded (According as it is written, "God hath given them the spirit of slumber, eyes that they should not see, and ears that they should not hear";) unto this day.

Matthew 13:10-16 And the disciples came, and said unto Him, "Why speakest Thou unto them in parables?" He answered and said unto them,

"Because it is given unto you to know the mysteries of the kingdom of heaven, but to them it is not given. For whosoever hath, to him shall be given, and he shall have more abundance: but whosoever hath not, from him shall be taken away even that he hath. Therefore speak I to them in parables: because they seeing see not; and hearing they hear not, neither do they understand. And in them is fulfilled the prophecy of Esaias, which saith, 'By hearing ye shall hear, and shall not understand; and seeing ye shall see, and shall not perceive: For this people's heart is waxed gross, and their ears are dull of hearing, and their eyes they have closed; lest at any time they should see with their eyes, and hear with their ears, and should understand with their heart, and should be converted, and I should heal them.' But blessed are your eyes, for they see: and your ears, for they hear. [Esaias = Isaiah]

Isaiah 44:18 They have not known nor understood: for he hath shut their eyes, that they cannot see; and their hearts, that they cannot understand.

The epitome of those that "hath not, from him shall be taken away" would be in Christ's Parable of the Sower (Matthew 13:3-23; Mark 4:2-20; Luke 8:4-15) in that the seeds by the wayside, the seeds on stony places, the seeds that were scorched, and the seeds among thorns neither had depth, fertile ground, or atmosphere to develop ... those without ears to hear/eyes to see neither have the depth, fertile mind, or surroundings to develop the full fruit of understanding. To some degree this is for their own protection (from committing the Unforgivable Sin).

II Thessalonians 2:10-11 And with all deceivableness of unrighteousness in them that perish; because they received not the love of the truth, that they might be saved. And for this cause God shall send them strong delusion, that they should believe a lie:

The parables of **Matthew 25** and **Luke 19** describe one given the blessings that they can handle and only that which they can handle. What they do with the blessings given to them is the way they will reap the rewards or pay the consequences. We are to be doers and providers of good fruits (good works), and in so reap further blessings. The alternative is to bury our talents and shirk our gifts and not produce anything or receive even that which we were freely given. The 'talents' are rooted in God's Truth. He gives as much Truth and Understanding to us as we are freely seeking, sharing, and working in His Truth. One cannot do good works (producing good fruit) without God's Truth.

Ephesians 2:8-10 For by grace are ye saved through faith; and that not of yourselves: it is the gift of God: Not of works, lest any man should boast. For we are His workmanship, created in Christ Jesus unto good works, which God hath before ordained that we should walk in them.

II Corinthians 9:6-8 But this I say, He which soweth sparingly shall reap also sparingly; and he which soweth bountifully shall reap also bountifully. Every man according as he purposeth in his heart, so let him give; not grudgingly, or of necessity: for God loveth a cheerful giver. And God is able to make all grace abound toward you; that ye, always having all sufficiency in all things, may abound to every good work,

Only God can blind someone's mind to the Truth of His Word if it is for their protection, and only God can open the seed of Truth for someone previously blinded. We are not to judge why someone does or does not see or is or is not worthy. This is not to take away from our duty to participate as fully as we are able and to seek truth and understanding. **II Timothy**

3:16-17; II Timothy 2:15



The Millennium

The Millennium is a 1,000-year period following the 7th Trump and is a **time of teaching** to those who have been blinded for their protection and/or those who didn't have a first chance in this 2nd earth age (flesh age). As this period follows the 7th Trump, we will all be in our spiritual bodies at this time but note that it is still prior to Judgment Day (and prior to the eternity in the 3rd and final earth age). What will be taught in the Millennium is discipline. We will all be in our spiritual bodies, and all have knowledge of the 1st earth/heaven age.

The Millennium is not a second chance. God is completely just, and the folks being taught in the Millennium are people who never had a first chance of knowing the Truth of God's Word (Hebrews 5:13-14 so many today are fed only the "milk" of Salvation and not the "mature" meat of the Word ... the Millennium will be all "meat"). Whether it be that they lived at a time or location that prohibited them either seeing/reading the Bible or having access to it ... or whether they were in churches that were so blind to the Truth of God's Word that they might as well not have had access to it. Whatever the case, God wants all His children to have a fair shot at choosing Him or Satan at the final test at the end of the Millennium period just prior to Judgment Day having had all the facts and opportunities. Those who passed the test in the 2nd earth age are the teachers, and the students of the Millennium are the ones in that final test.

Ezekiel 40-48 best outlines what we will be doing in the Millennium and Ezekiel 44:20-25 speaks to the family structure of this period and

how we recognize one another and how we are grouped. Revelation 20 also relays the Millennium period.

Revelation 20:1-3 And I saw an angel come down from heaven, having the key of the bottomless pit and a great chain in his hand. And he laid hold on the dragon, that old serpent, which is the Devil, and Satan, and bound him a thousand years, And cast him into the bottomless pit, and shut him up, and set a seal upon him, that he should deceive the nations no more, till the thousand years should be fulfilled: and after that he must be loosed a little season.

Judgment Day

At the 7th Trump we all change into our spiritual bodies (I Corinthians **15:51-58**), the Millennium is 1,000 years of teaching following the 7th Trump, Satan is loosed for a time for the final testing at the end of the Millennium and just before Judgment Day, the 3rd earth/heaven age starts at the end of Judgment Day.

First, neither anything in this 2nd earth age, or what's to come, has anything to do with whether your soul belongs to God. All souls belong to God. He created them in the 1st earth age, and He can destroy them on Judgment Day (Ezekiel 18:4). You accepting Christ as your Savior and whether you choose God or Satan and how you live in this 2nd earth age is a whole other matter indeed.

Ezekiel 18:4 Behold, all souls are Mine; as the soul of the father, so also the soul of the son is Mine: the soul that sinneth, it shall die.

Judgment Day is your reward for your good works. It doesn't need to be something dreaded. You are given eternal life on that wonderful day ... clothed based on righteous acts/works (the only thing you can actually take with you after your flesh death is your works **Revelation 14:13**). Yes, you are also judged on your unrepented bad acts as well. Evil souls choosing Satan, however, will be blotted out at this time. They will not be in a pit somewhere burning for all eternity. God will be rejuvenating the earth/heaven after Judgment Day and having evil anywhere as a part of this new eternity is not part of God's Plan (**Revelation 21:1** and **Luke 12:4-5** the death here is the death of the spiritual body, the very soul, the second and permanent death).

There is a difference between the gulfs in heaven now prior to Judgment Day and the "blotting out" on Judgment Day. **Luke 16** speaks to the divided gulfs in heaven currently (before Judgment Day) in the story of Lazarus and the rich man. The division is not God's final Judgment, but it is God's dividing certain sinners away from Him until the Millennium and Judgment Day. God doesn't send someone to hell before they are judged, but that in and of itself is a *hell* that the rich man wanted to warn his brothers against. The final hell (as it were) of Judgment Day is the smoke from the extinguishing of those judged to die the 2nd death being blotted out forever. Something we should all work against happening to us.

Romans 8:27 And He That searcheth the hearts knoweth what is the mind of the Spirit, because He maketh intercession for the saints according to the will of God.

I Samuel 16:7 But the Lord said unto Samuel, "Look not on his countenance, or on the height of his stature; because I have refused him: for the Lord seeth not as man seeth; for man looketh on the outward appearance, but the Lord looketh on the heart."

Proverbs 21:2-4 Every way of a man is right in his own eyes: But the Lord pondereth the hearts. To do justice and judgment Is more acceptable to the Lord than sacrifice. An high look, and a proud heart, And the plowing of the wicked, is sin.

I Chronicles 28:9 And thou, Solomon my son, know thou the God of thy father, and serve Him with a perfect heart and with a willing mind: for the Lord searcheth all hearts, and understandeth all the imaginations of the thoughts: if thou seek Him, He will be found of thee; but if thou forsake Him, He will cast thee off for ever.

Hebrews 4:12 For the word of God is quick, and powerful, and sharper than any twoedged sword, piercing even to the dividing asunder of soul and spirit, and of the joints and marrow, and is a discerner of the thoughts and intents of the heart.

I Corinthians 3:20 And again, "The Lord knoweth the thoughts of the wise, that they are vain."

Psalms 139:2 Thou knowest my downsitting and mine uprising, Thou under-standest my thought afar off.

God knows not only your works but your very heart. Doing something begrudgingly discounts the act, so give with a giving heart (I Peter 1:14-

16). The work you do here is your reward on Judgment Day. Your good works are your raiment (clothing in heaven) (**Revelation 19:7-8**). Repent for sins and move forward doing better (**Luke 13:3**).

Acts 3:19 Repent ye therefore, and be converted, that your sins may be blotted out, when the times of refreshing shall come from the presence of the Lord;

Mark 11:25-26 And when ye stand praying, forgive, if ye have ought against any: that your Father also Which is in heaven may forgive you your trespasses. But if ye do not forgive, neither will your Father Which is in heaven may forgive you your trespasses."

Matthew 18:35 So likewise shall My heavenly Father do also unto you, if ye from your hearts forgive not every one his brother their trespasses."

Isaiah 43:25 *I, even I, am He That blotteth out thy transgressions for Mine own sake, and will not remember thy sins.*



Baptism

Baptism is symbolic of the death, burial and resurrection of Christ. It is good to do it once the age of accountability is reached and ready, but not necessary to have eternal life in the 3rd earth age. Asking Christ into your heart and believing on Him, the one true Christ is paramount, but not the symbolism of baptism itself. The sinner on the Cross with Christ was told

that he'd be in Heaven, and he was just on the Cross saved and believed on Christ, but not baptized. Luke 23:39-43

When baptizing, Christ told us how it should be done:

Matthew 28:19 Go ye therefore, and teach all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost [Spirit]:

I Peter 3:21-22 The like figure whereunto even baptism doth also now save us (not the putting away of the filth of the flesh, but the answer of a good conscience toward God), by the resurrection of Jesus Christ: Who is gone into heaven, and is on the right hand of God; angels and authorities and powers being made subject unto Him.

Baptism is not what "gets you to heaven" or to think once baptized nothing you do can keep you from it. Believing on Christ and repentance and doing God's work daily is what will keep you in good standing. We are sinners in the flesh, so to think being washed clean once will keep us clean is folly. Thinking we need but be rebaptized is akin to resurrecting Christ over and over. It is not He that sins, but us continually ... repent and do better is all that is necessary.

Once you accept Christ and are saved, are you forever and always saved? Depends on what you do after you accept Christ. It is false to believe that once saved, all that you do will be fine because you are saved. Sin happens regardless of the saving, as we are sinners continually. Sin does not negate this, but rebuking Christ would. Once baptized and then falling into sin, doesn't mean you need to be rebaptized, just repent of the sin. God isn't the one that fails in our sins, but us alone. Repentance of

our sins is necessary, as is not repeating the sins over and again. **John 3:16**; **Acts 3:19**; **Isaiah 43:25**

Anointing

Anointing is something we do not need from anyone else. You can anoint yourself or anyone around you by following God's instruction and having faith in following those instructions. You can take olive oil and ask God to bless it in obedience to Him and then use that oil to anoint yourself, a loved one, your home for a healing, guidance, direction...

James 5:14 Is any sick among you? let him call for the elders of the church; and let them pray over him, anointing him with oil in the name of the Lord:

We are the church! If you do not have a church that you attend know that where two or more are gathered together, there also is Christ with you. We are the many membered body of Christ (the church in Christ). Matthew 18:20; Romans 12:5

Deuteronomy 28:40 Thou shalt have olive trees throughout all thy coasts, but thou shalt not anoint thyself with the oil; for thine olive shall cast his fruit.

Don't be confused here as this verse is among many in this chapter discussing how the Israelites will not be doing what they should. What we should be doing is using olive oil to anoint. We have power over Satan and can rebuke him in Christ's name as well as anoint in Christ's name for protection. Luke 10:17-20; Romans 12:21

It is the faith by which we pray and anoint that provides the healing through Christ. An example of such healing by faith is found in **Matthew 9:20-22**. Christ said here that "thy faith hath made thee whole."



Mansions

John 14:2 In My Father's house are many mansions: if it were not so, I would have told you. I go to prepare a place for you.

Mansions here means "abiding places" from the Greek **mone** (*Strong's* 3438 derived from 3306 meno) meaning: abide, dwell, be present. Put your dwelling in God and He will be present with you now and in Heaven.

Ofttimes folks get hung up on there being actual "mansions" in Heaven, as we know them here on earth. God is not about material things on earth, so why would that change in Heaven? We are clothed by our good works on Judgment Day, **Revelation 19:7-8**, so you can be naked as a jaybird or clothed in fine linen as is your choice right now in what you do. Aside from being clothed by your works, you will reside and dwell in God/Christ and that is better than any brick/mortar mansion filled with all the riches of this earth!

The 3rd Earth Age

So, following The Millennium and Judgment Day, this earth (and heaven) gets rejuvenated and renewed and the eternity with God will most definitely be heaven on earth! There will be no sin, no sorrow, and no more death.

Luke 12:4-5 And I say unto you My friends, Be not afraid of them that kill the body, and after that have no more that they can do. But I will forewarn you whom ye shall fear: Fear Him, which after He hath killed hath power to cast into hell; yea, I say unto you, Fear Him.

Following Judgment Day, and those who were blotted out, there will be no more fear or turmoil.

Revelation 21:1 And I saw a new heaven and a new earth: for the first heaven and the first earth were passed away; and there was no more sea.

Reminder that the verses in **II Peter 3:5-13** start in the 1st earth age and then cover the katabole (this is not talking about Noah's Flood here as the earth was not destroyed in his flood, but Satan's overthrow); and then takes us through the 2nd earth age, the 7th Trump, the Millennium, Judgment Day, and the 1st day of the 3rd Earth Age. The earth will not be destroyed, and a new one created for the 3rd and final earth/heaven age, but it will be rejuvenated and put back perfect (north axis and all). All the evil rudiments (elements) destroyed (not the earth itself).



The Lake of Fire

Revelation 19:3 And again they said, "Alleluia." And her smoke rose up for ever and ever.

Those judged to die the second death at Judgment will be *blotted out* for ever and ever. Their souls will cease to exist, and they will be no more.

Revelation 20:15 And whosoever was not found written in the book of life was cast into the lake of fire.

Revelation 21:8 But the fearful, and unbelieving, and the abominable, and murderers, and whoremongers, and sorcerers, and idolaters, and all liars, shall have their part in the lake which burneth with fire and brimstone; which is the second death."

The "lake of fire" is not a lake of hell burning for all eternity where those souls judged to it will scream in misery forever but is the "second death" where they will be blotted out and no longer remembered.

Genesis 19:24-25; 28 Then the Lord rained upon Sodom and upon Gomorrah brimstone and fire from the Lord out of heaven; And He overthrew those cities, and all the plain, and all the inhabitants of the cities, and that which grew upon the ground.

And he [Abraham] looked toward Sodom and Gomorrah, and toward all the land of the plain, and beheld, and, lo, the smoke of the country went up as the smoke of a furnace. The Bible is full of parallels for our knowledge and proves witness for things to come. The "smoke" of Sodom and Gomorrah is the Hebrew word **qiytor** (*Strong's 7008*) and means vapour. The smoke from the second death is their blotting out, their vaporization, their extinguishment. They will be forever no more.

Revelation 14:11 And the smoke of their torment ascendeth up for ever and ever: and they have no rest day nor night, who worship the beast and his image, and whosoever receiveth the mark of his name."



Brief Recap of God's Plan

So, we have established that the 1st earth age was destroyed in Satan's overthrow and that God has given us all a chance without prior knowledge of the 1st earth age in this 2nd earth age that was the recreation outlined in **Genesis**. That the 2nd earth age was to be **re**populated. That there is a distinction between 6th day man and 8th day man.

In **Genesis 1:26** God **created** man in their own image. In the image of their spiritual bodies. This was the 6th day man. Beyond the man created on this 6th day of creation, repopulation of the earth began, and all were born of woman as God's Plan dictates. This 6th day man accounts for all the races which were very good.

Geneses 1:31 And God saw every thing that He had made, and, behold, it was very good. And the evening and the morning were the sixth day.

God's Plan was for Him to come in the flesh (Jesus is God with us in the flesh) on earth, as He is having His children do in order for them to be born innocent of the 1st earth age. Him coming through woman in this flesh age, flesh body, meant that the seedline (genealogy) for which He would come would have to be untainted by Satan. God **formed** that man from which Christ would descend on the 8th day of creation (Adam).

God, just like any parent wants all of His children to live in the eternity with Him. The only children that are condemned to die a spiritual death prior to Judgment Day are Satan and the 7,000 Fallen Angles. Satan, however, is more than happy to take as many souls as possible with him to Hell and has tried to do just that since the beginning of God's Plan being put into action in the Garden of Eden with His set aside man for which Christ would be born.

Chapter Three Satan's Plan

IT HAS ALWAYS been the same lie from the beginning until now and is ongoing! Satan's Plan, simply put, is to win at all costs. His game is subtle and has infiltrated all walks of life and institutions. Sound like a thriller? It most definitely is structured like such a script. Beyond the plan overview below, be sure to check out all the dissected information for a full understanding.

Brief Overview of Satan's Plan

Satan has had and still has numerous plans throughout his time and until the end and Judgment Day. It started back in the 1st earth/heaven age when he deceived a third of God's children. He thought he was as good as God and could be God. In this 2nd earth/heaven age, he has tried various tactics to achieve his initial goal of becoming God since the 1st earth age. Satan knowing God's plan for this 2nd earth age and the redemption of God's children, Satan was/is able to do his best attempts at: 1) impeding the seedline for which Christ would come through; 2) twisting God's Truth and Word to the ignorance and false worship of as

many people as he could to turn them from God and towards himself through mistranslations and false teachings of God's Word, churches, etc.;

3) coming as Christ himself in the 6th Trump to deceive as many as he can to worshiping him. He will even try again at the end of the Millennium right before Judgment Day, when he is loosed for one final test for those who would be deceived and follow him, Revelation 20:7-8. Be wiser than the serpent and study God's Letter to you, the Bible, to know the truth and follow the true Christ!

Ephesians 6:10-20 Finally, my brethren, be strong in the Lord, and in the power of His might. Put on the whole armour of God, that you may be able to stand against the wiles of the devil. For we wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places. Wherefore take unto you the whole armour of God, that you may be able to withstand in the evil day, and having done all, to stand. Stand therefore, having your loins girt about with truth, and having on the breastplate of righteousness; And your feet shod with the preparation of the gospel of peace; Above all, taking the shield of faith, wherewith you will be able to quench all the fiery darts of the wicked. And take the helmet of salvation, and the sword of the Spirit, which is the word of God: Praying always with all prayer and supplication in the Spirit, and watching thereunto with all perseverance and supplication for all the saints, And for me, that utterance may be given unto me, that I may open my mouth boldly, to make known the mystery of the gospel, For which I am an ambassador in bonds; that therein I may speak boldly, as I ought to speak.

Satan's Overall Plan

There is much material to relay regarding Satan's Plan as we explore how he has attempted to alter God's Plan along the way and continues to do so and will up and until the very end. This will be just a brief overview before we start breaking it down piece by piece.

Ezekiel 28:14-15 Thou art the anointed cherub that coverth; and I have set thee so: thou wast upon the holy mountain of God; thou hast walked up and down in the midst of the stones of fire. Thou wast perfect in thy ways from the day that thou wast created, till iniquity was found in thee.

Satan was God's perfect cherub in the 1st earth age. He was the cherub that covereth the very Mercy Seat of God. Satan was not created evil but became evil.

Ezekiel 28:2; 17 ... 'Because thine heart is lifted up, and thou hast said, 'I am a GOD, I sit in the seat of God, in the midst of the seas;' yet thou art a man, and not GOD, though thou set thine heart as the heart of God:

Thine heart was lifted up because of thy beauty, thou hast corrupted thy wisdom by reason of thy brightness:

Satan got the big ego and started thinking he was God and from there started the deception for those that would believe and follow him. Remember that God created all souls in that 1st earth age. Satan deceived a third of God's children in that 1st earth age and many more could have been swayed. Don't mistake Satan as this overtly evil, mean character as he is so often portrayed. Satan is a beautiful and supernatural cherub

and deceives through cunning and usually flattering means. God had to shorten the end days for His very elect's sake because Satan is that good at deceit (all to be covered when we get to the Trumps).

Ezekiel 28:18-19 Thou hast defiled thy sanctuaries by the multitude of thine iniquities, by the iniquity of thy traffick; therefore will I bring forth a fire from the midst of thee, it shall devour thee, and I will bring thee to ashes upon the earth in the sight of all them that behold thee. All they that know thee among the people shall be astonished at thee: thou shalt be a terror, and never shalt thou be any more."

Satan's big end runs have been to initially impact the seedline for which Christ would come and then to impact the Truth of God's Word through mistranslations of the Manuscripts, traditions of men instead of God in worship and High Holy Days, through the churches and their teachings, and through who the Jews are (the tribe of Judah was but one tribe of Israel yet through Satan's deception that is all anyone focuses on and even at that get who the tribe of Judah and those residing of Judea mixed up and incorrectly portrayed).

Satan goes by many names, cherub, serpent, king of Tyre, king of Tyrus, that Assyrian, box cedar, death, glistening one, dragon, antichrist, etc. Satan's big modus operandi from the Garden of Eden, to tempting Christ in the wilderness, to current times in the churches, to Christ's return, to the millennial period is to just slightly twist God's Words around such that it sounds right or looks right or "feels" right and trips folks up.

Satan deceived those in the 1st earth age and Eve in the Garden. He tortured Job and tempted Christ. He derailed so many throughout history

and continues to do so now. Be wiser than the serpent and dig into God's Word to know the Truth for yourself, so when a mere turn of phrase is misconstrued, you know the difference!



Satan's Location & M.O.

Where Is Satan?

Back in the Garden of Eden and in the time of Job, Satan roamed the earth freely.

Job 1:6-7 Now there was a day when the sons of God came to present themselves before the Lord, and Satan came also among them. And the Lord said unto Satan, "Whence comest thou?" Then Satan answered the Lord, and said, "From going to and fro in the earth, and from walking up and down in it."

Satan roamed to and fro until he tempted Christ in the wilderness, when Christ ordered Satan behind Him, Matthew 4:10 and Luke 4:8. Satan was cast into the pit, Isaiah 14:12-19, where he is chained until the 6th Trump, guarded by the Archangel Michael, Jude 1:9 & Revelation 9:11 & Revelation 12:7-9. Following the 7th Trump, he will then be rechained for the teaching during the Millennium, and then will be released for one final testing at the end of the Millennium just prior to Judgment Day. Revelation 20:1-3

Satan ceased physically being allowed to roam the earth after he tempted Christ in the wilderness. Spiritually, however, he is still very much involved in this 2nd earth age. Christ has given us power over Satan, **Luke 10:17-19**. Rebuke Satan from tempting you. Study God's Word to be armed with the gospel armor, **II Timothy 2:15**.

How Satan Twists God's Word

Deuteronomy 8:3 And He humbled thee, and suffered thee to hunger, and fed thee with manna, which thou knewest not, neither did thy fathers know; that He might make thee know that man doth not live by bread only, but by every word that proceedeth out of the mouth of the Lord doth man live.

Compare God's Word and meaning of this verse in **Deuteronomy** to that of Satan's tempting in **Matthew 4:3**. Satan was tempting Christ, which is to say testing Him by subtly twisting God's Word. Jesus here was fasting, and Satan was suggesting that Jesus need only to turn "these" stones to bread in order to have food and end His fast. Satan will at every turn also test you by offering up easy and worldly deterrents away from following Christ and God's Word.

Psalms 91:11-12 For He shall give His angels charge over thee, To keep thee in all thy ways. They shall bear thee up in their hands, Lest thou dash thy foot against a stone.

Compare God's Word and meaning of this verse in **Psalms** to that of Satan's tempting in **Matthew 4:6**. If we are following Christ and God's instruction, He will keep us safe, but not to the point of us testing that

safety. It is "lest thou dash" not if thou go about trying to dash thy foot will He save/protect us. Satan's suggestion to Christ that He prove He is Christ and that God's Word is accurate by Him casting Himself from a high place was Satan's twisting Scriptures yet again.

Deuteronomy 6:16 Ye shall not tempt the Lord your God, as ye tempted Him in Massah.

Compare this verse in Deuteronomy to Jesus' reiteration of just that to Satan in **Matthew 4:7**.

Matthew 4:1-11 and Luke 4:1-13 are examples of how Satan twists God's Word and tempts us away from God. He is subtle and so confident in his ways to have even done it to Christ Himself. The subtlety is that Satan doesn't out right change all of God's Word. He just changes a few bits here and there such that if you are not careful and founded in God's Word, it will lead you astray.



Names of Satan

Some Scriptures below with the many names of Satan in boldface and underscored:

Revelation 20:1-2 And I saw an angel come down from heaven, having the key of the bottomless pit and a great chain in his hand. And he laid hold on the <u>dragon</u>, that old <u>serpent</u>, which is the <u>Devil</u>, and <u>Satan</u>, and bound him a thousand years.

Satan will be bound for 1,000 years in the Millennium (physically and spiritually) and then loosed one final time right before Judgment Day.

Revelation 6:8 And I looked, and behold, a pale horse: and his name that sat on him was <u>**Death**</u>, and Hell followed with him. And power was given unto them over the fourth part of the earth, to kill with sword, and with hunger, and with death, and with the beasts of the earth.

Satan is Death, and he will come in the 6th Trump on a pale horse which is to say a cheap imitation of that white horse Christ will come in on in the 7th Trump. When it speaks of those being delivered up to death in the 6th Trump, they are not being delivered up to die physically, but being delivered up to Satan who will be portraying himself as Christ in his role as Antichrist (which is to say instead of Christ). Satan's name of "Death" is utilized to stress the importance of not following him, as it will lead you to the death of your soul if you do.

I John 2:18 Little children, it is the last time: and as ye have heard that antichrist shall come, even now are there many antichrists; whereby we know that is the last time.

I John 2:22 Who is a liar but he that denieth that Jesus is the Christ? He is <u>antichrist</u>, that denieth the Father and the Son.

In **verse 18** the many *antichrists* that are with us currently are those false prophets, false preachers, false teachers, and Kenites. In **verse 22** *the antichrist* is that one to come pretending to be Christ in the 6th Trump and is Satan. **John 5:43**

Isaiah 14:12-19 How art thou fallen from heaven, O <u>Lucifer</u>, son of the morning! how art thou cut down to the ground, which didst weaken the nations! For thou has said in thine heart, 'I will ascend into heaven, I will exalt my throne above the stars of God: I will sit also upon the mount of the congregation, in the sides of the north: I will ascend above the heights of the clouds; I will be like the Most High.' Yet thou shalt be brought down to hell, to the sides of the pit. They that see thee shall narrowly look upon thee, and consider thee, saying, 'Is this the man that made the earth to tremble, that did shake kingdoms; That made the world as a wilderness, and destroyed the cities thereof; that opened not the house of his prisoners?' All the kings of the nations, even all of them, lie in glory, every one in his own house. But thou art cast out of thy grave like an abominable branch, and as the raiment of those that are slain, thrust through with a sword, that go down to the stones of the pit; as a carcase trodden under feet.

Satan was that **morning star**, that glorious cherub that protected the very Mercy Seat prior to him deciding he could replace God. His purpose now is to deceive God's children, His "stars".

Ezekiel 28:2; 13-16 "Son of man, say unto the <u>prince of Tyrus</u>, 'Thus saith the Lord God; 'Because thine heart is lifted up, and thou hast said, 'I am a God, I sit in the seat of God, in the midst of the seas;' yet thou art a man, and not God, though thou set thine heart as the heart of God:

Thou hast been in Eden the garden of God; every precious stone was thy covering, the sardius, topaz, and the diamond, the beryl, the onyx and the jasper, the sapphire, the emerald, and the carbuncle, and gold: the workmanship of thy tabrets and of thy pipes was prepared in thee in the day that thou wast created. Thou art the **anointed cherub** that covereth; and I have set thee so:

thou wast upon the holy mountain of God; thou hast walked up and down in the midst of the stones of fire. Thou wast perfect in thy ways from the day that thou wast created, till iniquity was found in thee. By the multitude of thy merchandise they have filled the midst of thee with violence, and thou hast sinned: therefore I will cast thee as profane out of the mountain of God: and I will destroy thee, O covering cherub, from the midst of the stones of fire.

Genesis 3:1 Now the <u>serpent</u> was more subtil than any beast of the field which the Lord God had made. And he said unto the woman, "Yea, hath God said, 'Ye shall not eat of every tree of the garden'?"

Serpent here is **nachash** (*Strong's 5172*) which is an enchanter and is that **Glistening One**, the Devil, which is to say Satan. Satan was that Tree of Death & Tree of Knowledge of Good and Evil from The Garden of Eden.

Ezekiel 31:3-11 Behold, the <u>Assyrian</u> was a cedar in Lebanon with fair branches, and with a shadowing shroud, and of an high stature; and his top was among the thick boughs. The waters made him great, the deep set him up on high with her rivers running round about his plants, and sent out her little rivers unto all the trees of the field. Therefore his height was exalted above all the trees of the field, and his boughs were multiplied, and his branches became long because of the multitude of waters, when he shot forth. All the fowls of heaven made their nests in his boughs, and under his branches did all the beasts of the field bring forth their young, and under his shadow dwelt all great nations. Thus was he fair in his greatness, in the length of his branches: for his root was by great waters. The cedars in the garden of God could not hide him: the fir trees were not like his boughs, and the chestnut trees were not like his

branches; nor any tree in the garden of God was like unto him in his beauty. I have made him fair by the multitude of his branches: so that all the trees of Eden, that were in the garden of God, envied him. Therefore thus saith the Lord God; 'Because thou hast lifted up thyself in height, and he hath shot up his top among the thick boughs, and his heart is lifted up in his height; I have therefore delivered him into the hand of the mighty one of the heathen; he shall surely deal with him: I have driven him out for his wickedness.

The Assyrian here in the Hebrew is 'Ashshur (Strong's 804) and should be read te'ashshur (Strong's 8391) meaning box cedar meaning Satan. As you can see in both Ezekiel 28 and Ezekiel 31, Satan was created by God as beautiful and powerful. Satan is not this hideous creature to view as he is so often portrayed. He is stunning both in appearance and abilities. He is that very Desolator spoken of in Daniel 9:27 & Mark 13:14 standing where he ought not (pretending to be Christ). He is also that tempter from Matthew 4:3 that tempted Christ.

II Corinthians 11:14 And no marvel; for Satan himself is transformed into an angel of light.

Revelation 9:11 And they had a king over them, which is the <u>angel of</u> the bottomless pit, whose name in the Hebrew tongue is <u>Abaddon</u>, but in the Greek tongue hath his name <u>Apollyon</u>.

Abaddon in Hebrew is the destruction. Here personified in the Greek as the Destroyer.

John 17:12 While I was with them in the world, I kept them in Thy name: those that Thou gavest Me I have kept, and none of them is lost, but the <u>son of perdition</u>; that the scripture might be fulfilled.



The Tree of Life & Tree of Death

Revelation 22:13-14 I am Alpha and Omega, the Beginning, and the End, the First and the Last. Blessed are they that do His commandments, that they may have right to the tree of life, and may enter in through the gates into the city.

Christ is the Tree of Life and Satan is the Tree of Knowledge of Good and Evil. Satan is also death, as in the spiritual death through him, and the death that Christ came to destroy **Hebrews 2:14**. "Tree" in Hebrew is either actual timber or the spine of backbone as in the trunk of the body depending on which Hebrew word is used. In these instances, it is the Hebrew word **atseh** meaning the trunk of the body (specifically, the spine, giving firmness to the body, the backbone).

Genesis 2:9 And out of the ground made the Lord God to grow every tree that is pleasant to the sight, and good for food; the tree of life also in the midst of the garden, and the tree of knowledge of good and evil.

The Bible uses symbolism all throughout and taking the words back to the original Hebrew/Greek meaning helps decipher, as does knowing figures of speech (e.g., today if you state that you want to "paint the town red" you do not literally mean you want to obtain a bucket of paint and paint the town, but rather you want to go out and have a great time) as does paying attention to the subject and object at hand. The "trees" in **Genesis 2:9** refers to "men" as "trees" (their spine is the trunk, and their limbs (arms/legs) are the branches; their fruit is what comes from them (works and offspring) ... what is produced from them ... good works or bad works ... just as today you can be producing good fruit for the Lord or bad fruit for Satan). The symbolism in **Isaiah 14** speaking of the king of Babylon and the fir trees rejoicing and him being cast into the "grave like an abominable branch" are some other of many, many such examples.

Ezekiel 31:3 Behold, the Assyrian was a cedar in Lebanon, with fair branches, and with a shadowing shroud, and of an high stature; and his top was among the thick boughs.

Satan was and is that very box cedar, that cheap imitation of Christ.

Genesis 2:17 But of the tree of the knowledge of good and evil, thou shalt not eat of it: for in the day that thou eatest thereof thou shalt surely die."

Satan had full knowledge of the 1st earth age and the most to gain by destroying God's plan for this 2nd earth age. Partaking in Satan's "fruit" and gaining knowledge from him was surely poison to anyone, past or present. Satan poisons anyone's thoughts away from God who allow him to do so.

Children in Sunday Schools everywhere are taught that Eve eating an apple was *the sin*. Try to find where that is stated anywhere in the Word of God.

Ets vs Atseh:

- **Ets** (*Strong's 6086*) in the Hebrew is "tree" and means *a tree; wood;* [actual] *timber*.
- Atseh (Strong's 6096) in the Hebrew is "tree" and means the spine; as giving firmness to the body; back bone.
- Ets is an actual tree & Atseh is a symbolic tree representing a man.

Genesis 2:9 And out of the ground made the Lord God to grow every tree that is pleasant to the sight, and good for food; the tree of life also in the midst of the garden, and the tree of knowledge of good and evil.

Genesis 3:1-3 Now the serpent was more subtil than any beast of the field which the Lord God had made. And he said unto the woman, "Yea, hath God said, 'Ye shall not eat of every tree of the garden'?" And the woman said unto the serpent, "We may eat of the fruit of the trees of the garden: But of the fruit of the tree which is in the midst of the garden, God hath said, 'Ye shall not eat of it, neither shall ye touch it, lest ye die."

The red highlighted "trees" in the passages above are the Hebrew word **ets** and are referring to actual fruit trees. God does not have anything against any of the trees He has created for us (or them) that bear actual fruit for us to consume. In contrast, the boldfaced "**trees**" in the passages above are the Hebrew word **atseh** and are referring to actual beings (in these instances Christ is Life; Satan is Death). Satan goes by many names and here, the "serpent", is but just one. Satan could take on any form he so chose as he is a supernatural being, so it is not a far stretch to imagine the beautiful and awe-inspiring form he presented himself as to Eve. To

partake of Satan is to partake of death because to believe his lies and follow him is to go down the path to a final death, the death of the soul.



Altering the Seedline

Satan's Plan: Altering the Seedline ... The Garden of Eden

Excerpts from The Bullinger King James Companion Bible Appendix 19:

It only shows the power of tradition, which has, from the infancy of each one of us, put before our eyes and written on our minds the picture of a "snake" and an "apple": the former based on a wrong interpretation, and the latter being a pure invention, about which there is not one word said in Holy Scripture.

Never was Satan's wisdom so craftily used as when he secured universal acceptance of this traditional belief: for it has succeeded in fixing the attention of mankind on the letter and the means, and thus blinding the eyes to the solemn fact that the Fall of man had to do solely with the Word of God, and Is centered in the sin of believing Satan's lie instead of Jehovah's truth.

This is his [Satan's] object in perpetuating the traditions of the "snake" and the "apple", because it ministers to the acceptance of his lie, the hiding of God's truth, the support of tradition, the jeers of the infidel, the opposition of the critics, and the stumbling of the weak in faith.

We cannot conceive Eve as holding converse with a snake, but we can understand her being fascinated by one, apparently "an angel of light" (i.e., a glorious angel), possessing superior and supernatural knowledge.

Christ was the Tree of Life and Satan the Tree of the Knowledge of Good and Evil. The fruit from Satan was twofold and against God's Plan all the way (1. twisting God's Words and sharing misinformation and 2. Christ's seedline). Satan's biggest initial try at altering God's Plan for His children was to impact the seedline for which Christ was designated to come through. Satan would temporarily accomplish this by deceiving Eve.

Genesis 3:3 But of the fruit of the tree which is in the midst of the garden, God hath said, 'Ye shall not eat of it, neither shall ye touch it, lest ye die.'"

The word "touch" is the Hebrew word **naga** (*Strong's 5060*) in the original manuscript and means to lie with a woman (have sexual intercourse).

Genesis 3:13 And the Lord God said unto the woman, "What is this that thou hast done?" And the woman said, "The serpent beguiled me, and I did eat."

The word "beguiled" here in the Hebrew is **nasha** (*Strong's 5377*) meaning to lead astray, to seduce. It is important to be able to take the words back to the Hebrew (Old Testament) and Greek (New Testament) to know the difference in meanings (e.g., the word "beguiled" in **Genesis 29:25** is **ramah** (*Strong's 7411*) and means to deceive or betray in Hebrew ... a completely different Hebrew word than that in **Genesis 3:13**).

II Corinthians 11:2-3 For I am jealous over you with godly jealousy: for I have espoused you to one husband, that I may present you as a chaste virgin to Christ. But I fear, lest by any means, as the serpent beguiled Eve through

his subtilty, so your minds should be corrupted from the simplicity that is in Christ.

Eve was beguiled by Satan. "Beguiled" here in the Greek is **exapatao** (*Strong's 1818*) meaning to be wholly seduced. (Note that the "chaste virgin in Christ" has to do with your mind and Satan's attempt to alter God's Plan in the 5th and 6th Trumps ... all to be discussed with the Trumps).

Genesis 4:1-2 Adam "knew" his wife and she conceived. Adam had sexual intercourse with Eve chronologically after Satan had done so. Eve carried fraternal twins (Cain was the offspring of Satan and Abel the offspring of Adam). Genesis 4:2 "and she again bare his brother Abel" ... "again bare" means to continue in birth ("again" is the Hebrew word yacaph (Strong's 3254) meaning to continue). Eve gave birth to Cain in verse one and continued in labor and gave birth to Abel in verse two. Fraternal twins are where two separate eggs, or ova, are fertilized and come from two separate bags of water, meaning they had two separate conceptions. Fraternal twins can be fertilized anywhere from two to six weeks apart.

Remember that the "repopulation" of the earth was already going on outside of the Garden of Eden with all the races that were made with the 6th day creation. Adam and Eve's purposes were for the seedline of Christ.

Cain was the first murderer referenced in **John 8:44** (as he killed his brother Abel **Genesis 4:3-8** & **I John 3:11-12**). Cain was not found in the genealogy of Adam in **Genesis 5** because he did not descend from Adam but from Satan (Abel is not listed there either as he was slain and had no resulting offspring). Cain's genealogy is found in **Genesis 4**. Note that Cain's descendants are "Kenites" meaning simply "sons of Cain" (from the

Hebrew word **Qayin** (*Strong's 7014*) meaning of an Oriental tribe: Cain, Kenite). The Kenites are that seed spoken of by Christ in the Parable of the Tares in **Matthew 13:35-42** "tares are the children of the wicked one".

"There were 130 years before Seth was born and substituted for Abel in the line of the promised seed." (*The Bullinger King James Companion Bible Appendix 20*)

Hebrews 2:14-16 Forasmuch then as the children are partakers of flesh and blood, He also Himself likewise took part of the same; that through death He might destroy him that had the power of death, that is, the devil; And deliver them who through fear of death were all their lifetime subject to bondage. For verily He took not on Him the nature of angels; but He took on Him the seed of Abraham.

Christ came in the flesh, born of woman, just as God has required all of us to do in this 2nd earth age. He died in pain, in the flesh not saving Himself on the Cross, for our sins and for us to live forever with Him in paradise in the rejuvenated 3rd earth/heaven age. He came to take away the "2nd death" (the death of the spirit) from us, to take that power from Satan, who is death. Christ came to destroy Death, which is to say Satan. He came through the untainted (by Satan or fallen angels) seedline of Abraham (descendant of Adam).

The sin in the Garden of Eden was that of partaking in the fruit of Satan. There is no apple mentioned, nor did Adam and Eve cover their mouths with fig leaves but their private parts for that is from where their sin was committed and for what part they were ashamed.

If Satan would have succeeded at impacting the seedline to Christ, then he would have relegated God's plan. He was not successful in his attempts to deter God's plan for Christ. He moved on from that failed plan to yet another.

...Enmity Between Seeds

Below is further evidence that the two seedlines being discussed were that of Adam (Abel) and Satan (Cain).

Genesis 3:15 And I will put enmity between thee and the woman, and between thy seed and her Seed; It shall bruise thy head, and thou shalt bruise His heel."

Notice that "thy" seed in God speaking to Satan is in lower case and that the Christ-line "Seed" is in upper case, referring to Christ Himself coming through her offspring. Further prophesying that Satan will bruise Christ's heel (on the Cross), but that Christ will bruise Satan's head (in the end).

Hebrews 2:14-16 Forasmuch then as the children are partakers of flesh and blood, He also Himself likewise took part of the same; that through death He might destroy him that had the power of death, that is, the devil; And deliver them who through fear of death were all their lifetime subject to bondage. For verily He took not on Him the nature of angels; but He took on Him the seed of Abraham.

Christ came in the flesh, born of woman (Mary) through the seed of Abraham (Adam/Eve). He withstood Satan's temptation to falter His purpose and by dying on the Cross for us and resurrecting, He defeated death which is to say Satan. Following Satan's lies and deceptions is to risk dying a spiritual death (death of your soul at Judgment). Satan is Death by name and practice.

Kenites, Jews, and Judah

There are several ways in which a group of people become known (referenced to, designated by, etc.). Here we are going to discuss the main two: One is by geographical location, and yet another is by family name. We are going to dissect the differences with a few that get really confused.

As laid out above, the Kenites were the offspring of Satan through Cain. Kenites simply means, "sons of Cain". This does not refer to their location, but their family name. In the Hebrew it is **Qayin** (*Strong's 7014*) and means of the Oriental tribe of Cain (as he went east away from the presence of the Lord). Note that this is different than the Canaanites as they were not offspring of Cain. "Canaanites" refers to a location of people (people from the land of Canaan ... Hebrew word **Kenaaniy** (*Strong's 3669*)).

Genesis 4:16 And Cain went out from the presence of the Lord, and dwelt in the land of Nod, on the east of Eden.

The Tribe of Judah is but one of the 12 tribes of Israel. Judah was one of the 12 sons of Jacob. Jacob's name would later be changed by God

to that of Israel's sons and their offspring would be referred to as "tribes" (tribes of Israel or Israelites) or by their tribe's individual names (tribe's names would simply be the name of the original sons of Israel, as in the Tribe of Judah).

"Jews" can refer to either those people of the Tribe of Judah or to those people geographically from Judaea (making them Judaean not necessarily also of the Tribe of Judah). **Ioudaios** (Strong's 2453) is the Greek word for "Jew" meaning from or of Judaea.

A significant part of Satan's interference in God's Plan and His Word is twisting who the "Jews" are. Traditions of men have so played into this twisting that commonly the entire 12 (technically 13 with the addition of Joseph's two sons) Tribes of Israel would be lost to most, and just referred to as "Jews" (meaning the isolation of but one of the tribes). To further convolute matters, most do not know the differences between simply those who were residents of Judaea versus those that descended through genealogy from Judah or any one of his 11 other brothers.

Revelation 2:9 I know thy works, and tribulation, and poverty (but thou art rich), and I know the blasphemy of them which say they are Jews, and are not, but are the synagogue of Satan.

The only two churches that God was pleased with in **Revelation** were the two that taught the difference between the Jews that were simply the residence of Judaea; the Jews that were of the Tribe of Judah and descendants of Israel; and the Jews that were actually Kenites and had interwoven themselves into Judaea and became known and confused as being also of the Tribe of Judah but were in fact descendants of Cain (thereby Satan) instead. Knowing who the Kenites are - is to have the

"Key of David" and know the important distinctions in genealogy and the misleading of the churches in teaching not of God's Word but of Satan's twisting of the Word.

Kenites call themselves Jews but are not of Judah. Kenites started mixing in with the Israelites as scribes back in **I Chronicles 2:55**. Not by coincidence that Satan's offspring would make themselves "useful" as the scribes to God's people.

This is not to at all imply that Kenites are doomed to anything other than what they doom themselves to. Only Satan and the fallen angels are yet judged to die the 2nd (spiritual) death; and beyond that, there is only one Unforgivable Sin (not letting the Holy Spirit speak through you when you are delivered up, **Luke 21:12-15**) for which no one has yet had the opportunity to commit. Kenites, just like anyone, descended from anyone, have the opportunity to believe upon Christ and follow Him. The Jews of today are a mixed race and just as God had promised to scatter Israel, they are scattered (all tribes) and whether they be descendants from Judah, descendants from those merely residing post Captivities in Judaea, or actual descendants from Kenites is irrelevant as far as what they are able to choose to accept and/or how to live today. The only key importance from a Scriptural standpoint is knowing the differences in Scripture and the traditions of men. For it is by this knowledge that Satan cannot deceive you in the 6th Trump. **Matthew 16:15-19**

Isaiah 22:20-22 And it shall come to pass in that day, that I will call My servant Eliakim the son of Hilkiah: And I will clothe him with thy robe, and strengthen him with thy girdle, and I will commit thy government into his hand: and he shall be a father to the inhabitants of Jerusalem, and to the

house of Judah. And the key of the house of David will I lay upon his shoulder; so he shall open, and none shall shut; and he shall shut, and none shall open.

Luke 11:52 Woe unto you, lawyers! for ye have taken away the key of knowledge: ye entered not in yourselves, and them that were entering in ye hindered."

Scripture lawyers will do that when they do not have the Key of David. Luke 11:45-52

John 8:31-44 Then said Jesus to those Jews which believed on Him, "If ye continue in My word, then are ye My disciples indeed; And ye shall know the truth, and the truth shall make you free. "They answered Him, "We be Abraham's seed, and were never in bondage to any man: how sayest Thou, 'Ye shall be made free?'" Jesus answered them, "Verily, verily, I say unto you, Whosoever committeth sin is the servant of sin. And the servant abideth not in the house for ever: but the Son abideth ever. If the Son therefore shall make you free, ye shall be free indeed. I know that ye are Abraham's seed; but ye seek to kill Me, because My word hath no place in you. I speak that which I have seen with My Father: and ye do that which ye have seen with your father." They answered and said unto Him, "Abraham is our father." Jesus saith unto them, "If ye were Abraham's children, ye would do the works of Abraham. But now ye seek to kill Me, a Man That hath told you the truth, which I have heard of God: this did not Abraham. Ye do the deeds of your father." Then said they to Him, "We be not born of fornication; we have one Father, even God." Jesus said unto them, "If God were your Father, ye would love Me: for I proceeded forth and came from God; neither came I of Myself, but He sent Me. Why do

ye not understand My speech? even because ye cannot hear My word. Ye are of your father the devil, and the lusts of your father ye will do. He was a murderer from the beginning, and abode not in the truth, because there is no truth in him. When he speaketh a lie, he speaketh of his own: for he is a liar, and the father of it.

Knowing the difference in who the descendants of Israel (and the different tribes including that of Judah) are from those who just resided in Judaea after the Captivities and had no direct genealogy with the offspring of Israel from those who descended from in whole or part from Kenites makes a huge difference in understanding the Pharisees and Sadducees and persecutors of Christ both then and now (Matthew 23:31-33). It also helps in understanding how God's Word has gotten mistranslated so poorly from the original manuscripts, and how the churches have been led so astray as to celebrate pagan traditions and traditions of man over the Truth of God's Word. Satan's deception is rampant in interference with the teaching of God's Word. "Study to shew thyself approved unto God, a workman that needeth not to be ashamed, rightly dividing the word of truth." II Timothy 2:15

Moses' Father-In-Law

Abraham's second wife after Sarah died was Keturah. Keturah had six sons with Abraham, one of which was Midian. The Midianite priests referenced in the Bible descended from Abraham through Midian. **Genesis 25:1-2**

Moses' father-in-law was a Midianite priest as stated by Scriptures and goes by several names, Jethro, Reuel, Raguel. All of these names reference the same Midianite priest and are all one-in-the-same, Moses' father-inlaw. One name is his actual name and the others a title. **Exodus 2:16, 18**; **Exodus 3:1**; **Numbers 10:29** to give a few references.

In **Judges 1:16** it stipulates that Moses' father-in-law was a Kenite. It is impossible for him to have been a Kenite (descendant of Cain) as it is well documented that he was in fact a descendant of Midian and a Midianite priest. This stipulation would have to do rather with the fact that Jethro and his family were from the land of the Kenites (difference again in genealogy versus geographical location of residence).

Satan's Plan: Altering the Seedline ... The Fallen Angels

Our spiritual bodies have shape, form, and substance. To be absent from these flesh bodies is to be present in our spiritual bodies (both from the 1st earth age onward). When the Israelites were in the wilderness God sent them angel's food (manna) to consume (**Exodus 16**). When there are the instances in the Bible when the men (angel's) of God visited upon man, they sometimes ate with man, and in these cases were able to consume our food (**Genesis 18** for one). When these angels (men of God) were present with us to deliver messages or intervene, they were seen by man (**Joshua 5:13-15**; **Judges 13** for just two examples). Just as Satan was able to seduce and produce offspring with Eve, so too did the fallen angels.

Genesis 6:1-2 And it came to pass, when men began to multiply on the face of the earth, and daughters were born unto them, That the sons of God saw the daughters of men that they were fair; and they took them wives of all which they chose.

The sons of God were angels. Angels are simply anyone in heaven in their spiritual bodies (archangels are different and apart, we are just talking the "standard" angel). Angels are not special, just as we are not special above anyone else, we just are who/what we are. These sons of God (angels) are not flying around with wings and are not little cherub babies. In the first earth/heaven age, God created all souls. In that first earth/heaven age, we were all in our spiritual bodies. When we are not in our flesh bodies in this second earth/heaven age, we are in our spiritual bodies. The "fallen angels" are what is being discussed here and they are those that decided to disobey God's Plan and not be born of woman in this 2nd earth age. They decided rather to come to earth as spiritual beings with full foreknowledge of the 1st earth age and procreate with the "daughters of man" (meaning having offspring with women who were born of woman and in the flesh). Why? Simply another game changer that Satan threw in to impact the seedline to Christ, if possible, but also to impact the knowledge of the 1st earth age here on earth in the 2nd earth age to try and sway the outcome and purpose of this 2nd earth age.

Jude 1:6 And the angels which kept not their first estate, but left their own habitation, He hath reserved in everlasting chains under darkness unto the judgment of the great day.

The fallen angels left their first estate, heaven, and came to earth outside of God's Plan. All of **Jude** deals with these angels. Because of their dreadful sin they are the only ones besides Satan that are already condemned to die the 2nd death (spiritual death) and are chained until the 6th Trump when they will be loosed with Satan. **Revelation 9:1-3**; **Revelation 12:7-**

9; Revelation 11:13; II Peter 2:12

Genesis 6:4 There were giants in the earth in those days; and also after that, when the sons of God came in unto the daughters of men, and they bare children to them, the same became mighty men which were of old, men of renown.

The offspring of the fallen angels ("nephilim") and woman were "gibbor" and they were *giants*. The mixing of the supernatural with the flesh produced not only a supernaturally large/strong race of people, but also a group that had foreknowledge of that 1st earth/heaven age. Going back to that third that outright followed Satan, these were a wicked minded bunch with some awesome power over those just of the flesh. **Numbers 13:33**; **Deuteronomy 2:9-11**; **Deuteronomy 2:20**; **Deuteronomy 3:11**; **Joshua 17:15**

Genesis 6:5-7 And God saw that the wickedness of man was great in the earth, and that every imagination of the thoughts of his heart was only evil continually. And it repented the Lord that He had made man on the earth, and it grieved Him at His heart. And the Lord said, "I will destroy man whom I have created from the face of the earth; both man, and beast, and the creeping thing, and the fowls of the air; for it repenteth Me that I have made them."

So here God was right back to the decision He had to make when Satan sinned in the 1st earth age ... destroy all of His creation/children ... or ...

Genesis 6:8-9 But Noah found grace in the eyes of the Lord. These are the generations of Noah: Noah was a just man and perfect in his generations, and Noah walked with God.

It does not say here that Noah was perfect, just that *his generations* were perfect ... meaning that neither he nor his sons had mixed with any of the nephilim and that their line was still pure and clean. Through this adherence to God's Plan, God preserved all of the races and only eliminated the evil that existed and moved forward with His Plan of the 2nd earth/heaven age. Whether you believe that there was a universal flood or just a local flood of complete destruction ... either way, all races were preserved and carried forth (two of every kind), including the eight Adamic souls (through Noah ... seedline to Christ) and the Kenites. The wicked offspring of the nephilim, the gibbor, were who needed to be removed.

Satan, however, did not let this go with just that first influx of fallen angels. There were two others to follow the Flood. Three influxes of fallen angels in all: 1st was that influx during Noah's time in Genesis 6. 2nd influx was the Canaanites (residents of Canaan not Kenites) about 400 years after Noah's Flood in Genesis 12:6; Genesis 13:7. 3rd influx will be during the end of this dispensational time referenced in I Corinthians 11:10. Don't forget that in the end times, it will be like that of the time of Noah. Matthew 24:37; Luke 17:26

So that "after that", i.e., after the Flood, there was a second irruption of these fallen angels, evidently smaller in number and more limited in area, for they were for the most part confined to Canaan, and were in fact known as "the nations of Canaan". It was for the destruction of these, that the sword of Israel was necessary, as the Flood had been before. (excerpt from The Bullinger King James Companion Bible Appendix 25)



Rapture Plot

Satan's Plan: The Rapture Plot

The biggest betrayal of God's Plan and His people is that of *The Rapture Plot*. Just within the last 200 years, Satan has accomplished such a twisting of Scripture that people no longer try to understand the book of **Revelation** or realize that Satan will be coming first posing as Christ Himself, since they are awaiting a pre-tribulation "rapture". All of this is lies; and, just like there not being an "apple" sin in the Garden of Eden, there is no pre-tribulation rapture in the Bible either.

The "rapture theory" came into existence in 1830 via a family in Europe who had dreams and visions. One of those family members was Margaret McDonald and she had a vision while stammering in tongues this "any moment doctrine" and she claimed it felt evil at the first of the vision.

So regardless of the bizarre origin, or the blatant disregard for it not being taught in any capacity prior to the mid-1800s, a pre-tribulation rapture is not Scriptural. So, for now let's leave the evil, craziness of its birth, and just look at the Scriptures that are typically utilized for its "proof".

I Thessalonians 4:13-17 But I would not have you to be ignorant, brethren, concerning them which are asleep, that ye sorrow not, even as others which have no hope. For if we believe that Jesus died and rose again, even so them also which sleep in Jesus will God bring with Him. For this we say unto you by the word of the Lord, that we which are alive and remain unto the coming of the Lord, shall not prevent them which are asleep. For the

Lord Himself shall descend from heaven with a shout, with the voice of the archangel, and with the trump of God: and the dead in Christ shall rise first: Then we which are alive, and remain, shall be caught up together with them in the clouds, to meet the Lord in the air: and so shall we ever be with the Lord.

In **II Corinthians 5:6-8** To be absent from this flesh body is to be present with the Lord; and therefore, of course those which are dead ("asleep") shall rise first with Christ when He comes in the 7th Trump, as they are already with Him. Meaning they are already transformed to their spiritual bodies and so they precede those who are in their flesh bodies at the 7th Trump. At the 7th Trump all who are in the flesh instantly transform into their spiritual bodies. In **verse 17** "air" means "breath of life", or spiritual bodies and "clouds" is a colloquialism meaning large group or large congregation. **I Corinthians 15:51-58** & **Ecclesiastes 12:6-7**

II Thessalonians 2:1-4 Now we beseech you, brethren, by the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ, and by our gathering together unto Him, That ye be not soon shaken in mind, or be troubled, neither by spirit, nor by word, nor by letter, as from us, as that the day of Christ is at hand. Let no man deceive you by any means: for that day shall not come, except there come a falling away first, and that man of sin be revealed, the son of perdition, Who opposeth and exalteth himself above all that is called God, or that is worshipped; so that he as God sitteth in the Temple of God, shewing himself that he is God.

In **verses 3-4**, Let no man deceive you but there will be a "falling away first", meaning apostasy ... that Antichrist *is* coming first. The apostasy

is the desolator (Satan) sitting where he ought not (coming in place of Christ) and people worshiping him as Christ. The son of perdition is Satan. II Thessalonians 2

In **Matthew 24:40** the one taken in the field was not "raptured", but "taken" in the sense of falling for Antichrist. When we discuss the Trumps, we will dissect these Scriptures in more detail and the ramifications of being deceived by Satan as Antichrist.

I Am Against Those That Teach Fly Away Doctrine

Ezekiel 13 Informs us how to identify a false prophet and what God will do to them. It also addresses God being against those that teach fly away doctrine. Yes, God knew that the Rapture Doctrine would be a part of Satan's game plan, and He warns against it in the Old Testament.

Ezekiel 13:17-23 Likewise, thou son of man, set thy face against the daughters of thy People, which prophesy out of their own heart; and prophesy thou against them, And say, 'Thus saith the Lord God; Woe to the women that sew pillows to all armholes, and make kerchiefs upon the head of every stature to hunt souls! Will ye hunt the souls of My People, and will ye save the souls alive that come unto you? And will ye pollute Me among My People for handfuls of barley and for pieces of bread, to slay the souls that should not die, and to save the souls alive that should not live, by your lying to My People that hear your lies? Wherefore thus saith the Lord God; 'Behold, I am against your pillows, wherewith ye there hunt the souls to make them fly, and I will tear them from your arms, and will let the souls go, even the souls that ye hunt to make them fly. Your kerchiefs also will I tear, and deliver My People out of your hand, and they shall be no more in your hand to be hunted; and ye shall

know that I am the Lord. Because with lies ye have made the heart of the righteous sad, whom I have not made sad; and strengthened the hands of the wicked, that he should not return from his wicked way, by promising him life: Therefore ye shall see no more vanity, nor divine divinations: for I will deliver My People out of your hand: and ye shall know that I am the Lord."

- ➤ "pillows to all armholes" = prevents you from outstretching your arms up to God. When we reach up to God for His strength and for His help we will prevail over Satan.
- "kerchiefs" = covers your head/eyes and prevents you from God's Truth.

Satan's Plan: The Rapture Plot Continued

The Rapture Plot was just discussed and taken to task as it is not Scriptural. Below is a comprehensive review by The Shepherd's Chapel (and available from their library) of two books by Dave MacPherson, *The Incredible Cover-Up* and *The Rapture Plot*.

"Will Christ Return Twice?: Many modern day churches teach that our Saviour Jesus Christ will return twice, one to rapture His church and a second time for judgment known as the Day of the Lord. Many Christians will be surprised to learn that early churches only taught a single return of Christ at the seventh and last trump of Revelation. In fact, the "theory" that Jesus would secretly come to "rapture away" His church before the seventh trump has been taught for less than 200 years. The relatively new rapture teaching in mainline churches has become so pervasive that most of those churches no longer use the term "rapture theory" but now elevate it to the "rapture doctrine."

"What Does The Bible Say?: Christians have always had to be careful of blindly learning the traditions of men rather than relying solely on God's Word. If we only listen to the Words of Jesus as found in Matthew Chapter 24 and Mark Chapter 13 there would be no confusion. Jesus tells us plainly that a great tribulation, such as has not been since the beginning of the world to this time, would occur before He would return. He further says that unless those days of great tribulation be shortened that no flesh would be saved, but for the elect's sake those days would be shortened. In other words, His church would exist throughout the great tribulation period."

"How Did The Rapture Theory Spread?: If the Rapture Theory/Doctrine is not in the Bible then how did it all start and how could it possibly have spread to the point most churches now teach it as doctrine? The Incredible Cover-Up answers these important questions. You will learn a key origin of the Rapture Theories in 1830 starting from the babbling of a church member who thought she was dying to a book written by a charismatic minister some 23 years later detailing those babblings and calling them a new revelation of a pre-tribulation rapture of the church. From that point, the incredible rapture theory story gradually grew into almost universal acceptance as doctrine. Today, many churches do not tolerate even questioning the rapture by their members. It is time all Christians learn the truth directly from God's Word."

"More Rapture Theory Background: Author Dave MacPherson's "The Incredible Cover-Up" created quite a stir among Christians who were surprised to learn the origins of the Rapture Theory taught by most of today's churches. Through the years Mr. MacPherson continued to learn more details behind the rapid spreading of this dangerous teaching. Why when faced with the facts about the Rapture Theory have so many religious leaders dug in their heels as they rabidly defend and promote what they now consider to be the Rapture Doctrine? "The Rapture Plot" now presents even more documentation

and provides new evidence and chronological history behind the spread of a false and dangerous teaching."

"Answering The Critics: Since the publication of "The Incredible Cover-Up" critics have tried to say there is not enough evidence to prove a Rapture Theory link to a few local charismatic churches in the early to mid-1800's in England. The critics prefer to teach that many 1800's church leaders came to the same conclusion that the Bible can be interpreted to teach pretribulation or secret rapture of the faithful church to spare them the torment of the great tribulation. Dave MacPherson's additional and comprehensive research lays that claim bare. MacPherson carefully documents literally every piece of information showing the origin and spread of the Rapture Theory and exactly where that information resides. Now any interested person can duplicate MacPherson's research and come to their own conclusion. Anyone who has been exposed to the Rapture Theory/Doctrine should read the truth about why this false teaching exists."

"Review of Modern Church Rapture Proponents: There are now many new books by Rapture scholars which attempt to change history in order to hide the origins of the Rapture Theory. These works are authored by some of the best known modern church leaders and MacPherson methodically takes them all to task. The reader will clearly see how some modern teachers have sought to pervert history for their own ends and others have copied their works rather than do their own research. One can only conclude that some church leaders who teach this false doctrine and traditions have blindly decided to dig in their heels rather than to admit error in the Rapture Theory. They assume the majority of church leaders must be right, and hence they and their followers fall victim to the traditions of men."

Those "Taken" ... Do Not Be Deceived

Matthew 24:37-42 But as the days of Noe [Noah] were, so shall also the coming of the Son of man be. For as in the days that were before the flood they were eating and drinking, marrying and giving in marriage, until the day that Noe entered into the ark, And knew not until the flood came, and took them all away; so shall also the coming of the Son of man be. Then shall two be in the field; the one shall be taken, and the other left. Two women shall be grinding at the mill; the one shall be taken, and the other left. Watch therefore: for ye know not what hour your Lord doth come. Luke 17:26-36

- ➤ Just like in the time of Noah, there will be a flood, but this flood will be the flood of Satan's lies and deception. Additionally, there will be that 3rd influx of the fallen angels. Another parallel to Noah's flood and the 6th Trump will be the time period of 5 months and the 150 days of Noah (5 months).
- ➤ Of the two in the field, the one "taken" is the one deceived believing Satan as Antichrist is the one true Christ.
- ➤ The examples of those "taken" will be the ones swept up in the flood of Satan and his angles' (locust army) lies. The ones left in the field, etc., are the ones waiting for Christ in the 7th Trump and doing God's work.

Two Tribulations

There will be two tribulations in the 6th/7th Trump. There will, however, be no escape from tribulation but the good news is you only have to be involved with one.

The 1st Tribulation that occurs is in the 6th Trump when Antichrist is here on earth during the latter two and half month period of time (second half of the five months). It will be a time of tribulation for those who know he is not Christ and refuse to worship him as such. Fortunately, we only have to be tried for no more than 10 days individually. **Revelation 2:10**

This is the first test for those to choose Satan or Christ in this second earth age. The second and final opportunity to choose Christ is at the end of the Millennium when Satan is loosed one last time before Judgment Day. **Revelation 20**

The 2nd Tribulation that occurs is right at the moment of the 7th Trump when the one true Christ returns and everyone who worshiped Satan realizes what they have done, and they wish for mountains to fall on them. Luckily, this is but a blip of time; and we, all being in our spiritual bodies, move on into the time of teaching of the 1,000-year period that is the Millennium. Matthew 24; Mark 13; Luke 21; Revelation 9



The Church

Satan's Plan: The Church

So, Satan's plan to impact Christ's seedline went bust. Neither through Cain, nor the Fallen Angels did it alter God's prevailing plan. Satan's other end run has been to impact God's message. From the 1st earth age to the Garden of Eden throughout all of history, the evidence of Satan's twisting

of Truth is abundant. Should it surprise anyone who studies God's Word to know that Satan has infiltrated the Church?

Again, Satan does not come in this *evil bad guy* role. He compliments, cajoles, disarms, etc., etc., to twist truth and reality just enough to work in his favor. The very traditions of men throughout history, and especially today, are fraught with his handy work.

II Corinthians 11:13-15 For such are false apostles, deceitful workers, transforming themselves into the apostles of Christ. And no marvel; for Satan himself is transformed into an angel of light. Therefore it is no great thing if his ministers also be transformed as the ministers of righteousness; whose end shall be according to their works.

The ministers of Satan present themselves as the ministers of Christ. Little difference to any of the false prophets and teachers in history, or than the Sadducees and Pharisees of Christ's time.

The Kenites impacted the writings as scribes to the Israelites, **I Chronicles 2:55**. The further away from the Manuscripts, the more diluted and misrepresented the Scriptures. If you compare common translations of today's Bibles to that of even just the King James Bible, it is heart stopping how changed and misrepresented the texts have become.

Colossians 2:8 Beware lest any man spoil you through philosophy and vain deceit, after the tradition of men, after the rudiments of the world, and not after Christ:

Mark 7:9 And He said unto them, "Full well ye reject the commandment of God, that ye may keep your own tradition.

The traditions of men with just even looking at "Easter" and "Christmas" celebrations in the Churches today is heartbreaking. So much of what goes on is from pagan tradition in place of what God stipulated in His Word. Through ignorance we have allowed Satan to take over these very practices. Matthew 15:14; Hosea 4:6; James 1:5; Romans 16:17-20: I Peter 1:14-16

Christ became our Passover. The laws were not what was nailed to the Cross, but the blood ordinances. Most churches today are misrepresenting that the Old Testament does not apply to us today. This is so not the case, nor is it Scriptural. The New Testament and Christ's teachings stipulate just the opposite.

II Peter 2:1-3 But there were false prophets also among the people, even as there shall be false teachers among you, who privily shall bring in damnable heresies, even denying the Lord That bought them, and bring upon themselves swift destruction. And many shall follow their pernicious ways; by reason of whom the way of truth shall be evil spoken of. And through covetousness shall they with feigned words make merchandise of you: whose judgment now of a long time lingereth not, and their damnation slumbereth not.

Matthew 23:26-28 speaks to the false teachers who whitewash their deeds and work at making it seem so clean, wonderful, and righteous.

So why are the churches filled with people so blind to God's Truth and so willing to listen to the false prophets who themselves are misled? Because it sounds good. It sounds so sweet and so easy. It doesn't make anyone feel uncomfortable or really responsible. How do you tell if a church is teaching God's Truth? 1) Check out everything for yourself in God's Word to know what's Truth and what's false. 2) If they tell you more what they think and give you more written speech than God's Word and what He thinks, then you most likely need to search beyond them. 3) If they teach false traditions of men more than God's Truth, then they are not teaching Truth. (partaking of an apple in the Garden of Eden; that you don't have to understand **Revelation**; that you are going to be "taken" in the end times, and not to worry about anything; that Easter tradition is Biblical and do not teach about Passover; they beg for money; they don't teach the Key of David, etc., etc., etc.) **Isaiah 30:8-17**; **Ezekiel 13**; **I Peter 2**; **II John 1:10-11**; **Matthew 24:11-24**

Ezekiel 13:1-3 And the word of the Lord came unto me, saying, "Son of man, prophesy against the prophets of Israel that prophesy, and say thou unto them that prophesy out of their own hearts, 'Hear ye the word of the Lord; Thus saith the Lord God; 'Woe unto the foolish prophets, that follow their own spirit, and have seen nothing!

II Timothy 4:1-5 I charge thee therefore before God, and the Lord Jesus Christ, Who shall judge the quick and the dead at His appearing and His kingdom; Preach the word; be instant in season, out of season; reprove, rebuke, exhort with all longsuffering and doctrine. For the time will come when they will not endure sound doctrine; but after their own lusts shall they heap to themselves teachers, having itching ears; And they shall turn away their ears

from the truth, and shall be turned unto fables. But watch thou in all things, endure afflictions, do the work of an evangelist, make full proof of thy ministry.

Out of the seven churches spoken of in **Revelation**, only two of them was God pleased with because only those two taught His Truth. Be wiser than the Serpent. Study God's Word for yourself so as not to be deceived! God's judgment begins at the pulpit; so even those meaning well, will have to answer for their deception through their own willful ignorance. We all individually answer for our own actions. We are all responsible for our own knowledge!

Jeremiah 23:1 Woe be unto the pastors that destroy and scatter the sheep of My pasture! saith the Lord.

Jeremiah 23:30 Therefore, behold, I am against the prophets, saith the Lord, that steal My words every one from his neighbor.

All of Jeremiah 23 addresses false prophets and fake preachers of God's Word. In Jeremiah 23 and Ezekiel 13 God addresses how He feels about prophesying from falsehoods and from man's own mouth and dreams. God has given us both history and prophesy in His Word. John the Baptist was the last prophet before Christ. We have the prophecies, the signs, and the seasons to know what God would have us know. Dreams, visions, and prophecies borne outside of that are man derived. Be careful of that which is not from God or does not align with His Word. We have the ability to check it all out for ourselves in an undiluted (man altered) Bible, so don't take anyone's word over God's and check out for yourself what's real and what's false.

II John 1:10-11 If there come any unto you, and bring not this doctrine, receive him not into your house, neither bid him God speed: For he that biddeth him God speed is partaker of his evil deeds.

I Peter 4:17 For the time is come that judgment must begin at the house of God: and if it first begin at us, what shall the end be of them that obey not the gospel of God?

Whether in ignorance or on purpose, it is not wise to add to or take away from God's Word. All the tinkering with the translations does this. Preaching vain lessons from man's mind and not God's Word does this too. Check out everything for yourself and only study with those who check out!

Deuteronomy 4:2 Ye shall not add unto the word which I command you, neither shall ye diminish ought from it, that ye may keep the commandments of the Lord your God which I command you.

The Churches of Revelation

Of the seven Churches spoken of in **Revelation 2-3** only was God pleased with two of them (Smyrna and Philadelphia) because they were the only churches who taught the Truth of God's Word and The Key of David.

- 1. Revelation 2:1-4 The Church of Ephesus took up with the traditions of men and didn>t study God's Word.
- 2. Revelation 2:8-10 The Church of Smyrna taught who the

- Kenites were in teaching The Key of David, and God was pleased with them. John 8:42-44
- Revelation 2:12-16 The Church of Pergamos taught for money and likened to Balaam who was a priest that liked money more than truth spoken of in Numbers 22-25. II Peter 2:15-16
- **4. Revelation 2:18-27** The Church of Thyatira prophesied the "fly away doctrine" or following Jezebel ... they worshiped the beauty of spurious messiah; Antichrist.
- Revelation 3:1-5 The Church of Sardis liked lots of little gods and were deader than a doornail to the Truth of God's Word.
- Revelation 3:7-12 The Church of Philadelphia kept God's Word and did not deny His Word.
- 7. Revelation 3:14-21 The Church of Laodiceans don't make a stand; neither cold nor hot; never doing anything to cause controversy by teaching the whole Truth of God's Word.

Teaching the simple truth of God's Word is a rare find for sure, because churches don't want to cause controversy or ruffle feathers, and they certainly don't want to jeopardize the funds they receive for all the good feeling milk of the Word and traditions of man that they find easier to teach. They are no different than the money changers that Jesus contended with when He was here on earth in the 1st Advent. I have only found one church that teaches God's Word in all the years I've searched and that follows with the math of only two of seven churches could God be pleased with in **Revelation**.

Famine Of The End Times

Amos 8:11 Behold, the days come, saith the Lord God, that I will send a famine in the land, not a famine of bread, nor a thirst for water, but of hearing the words of the Lord:

In this day and time where the Bible is published in almost all languages and available to almost anyone who seeks it, how can there be a famine for hearing His Words? Simply the mistransliterations of the Manuscripts combined with the lack of true knowledge and understanding of His Word is how. If only folks would spend the time chapter by chapter and verse by verse; subject and object seeking the simplicity of His Word, then there would not be such a famine. That is not the case however! Don't let ignorance derail your walk with God! Study to show thyself approved!

II Timothy 2:15 Study to shew thyself approved unto God, a workman that needeth not to be ashamed, rightly dividing the word of truth.

Bethel v Bethaven

Bethel is a House of God. *Bethaven* is a house of vanity, of nothingness. Choose the House of Worship that Worships God and follows His Word and not that of the traditions of men. **II John 1:10-11 & Mark 7:13**

Genesis 28:19-22 And he called the name of that place Beth-el: but the name of that city was called Luz at the first. And Jacob vowed a vow, saying, "If God will be with me, and will keep me in this way that I go, and will give

me bread to eat, and raiment to put on, So that I come again to my father's house in peace; then shall the lord be my God: And this stone, which I have set for a pillar, shall be God's house: and of all that Thou shalt give me I will surely give the tenth unto Thee."

Hosea 4:15 Though thou, Israel, play the harlot, yet let not Judah offend; and come not ye unto Gilgal, neither go ye up to Beth-aven [house of naught], nor swear, The Lord liveth.

Luke 16:15 And He said unto them, "Ye are they which justify yourselves before men; but God knoweth your hearts: for that which is highly esteemed among men is abomination in the sight of God.

Hebrews 4:12 For the word of God is quick, and powerful, and sharper than any twoedged sword, piercing even to the dividing asunder of soul and spirit, and of the joints and marrow, and is a discerner of the thoughts and intents of the heart.



Antichrist

Satan's Plan: Antichrist

Satan has set things up nicely for his ultimate deception at the 6th Trump. He has pulled large masses of church going folks away from the actual Truth of God's Word, and he has deterred countless others from going to church because of the hypocrisy and contradictions in their teachings of traditions

of men over God's Word. Satan has masses of individuals prepped for a "rapture" and to be "caught up" and "taken first" in deception of folks not knowing the difference in a false one coming in the 6th Trump versus Jesus Christ coming in the 7th Trump. The signs are all outlined for us in the **Gospels** and **Revelation**, so let's dig in and dissect the Truth so as not to be deceived.

Antichrist simply means "instead of Christ". Satan is going to come in the 6th Trump as Christ. He is going to put on quite the show, so we for certain need to all ready ourselves to not be deceived. God knows that Satan is going to be so convincing that He even shortened the time from seven years in Daniel 9:27 to five months in Revelation 9:5 just so His very Elect (the ones He can count and rely on as proved in the 1st earth/heaven age) would not be deceived. Satan is going to be that good at carrying out his deception of pretending to be Christ.

Mark 13:20 And except that the Lord had shortened those days, no flesh should be saved: but for the elect's sake, whom He hath chosen, He hath shortened the days. ... and Matthew 24:22

The five months spoken of in **Revelation 9:4-6** is that shortened time for which Antichrist will be on this earth. It will be a time of tribulation for those that have the Truth of God's Word and know that he is not Christ. It will be a time of great deceit for everyone else. Those deceived will be the "ones taken" so to speak, in that they are "taken" from knowing who Christ is. Their tribulation will come in the 7th Trump when the true Christ returns, and they wish for the mountains to fall on them, **Revelation 6:15-17**.

From **Daniel 9:27** we learn that the time of Antichrist will be broken into two segments. The oblation will cease because the majority will believe that Satan is Christ. Reminder to not get confused regarding the "7 years" spoken of in Daniel as that time was shortened to the now five months (just shorten the timelines of **Daniel** as fitting into the 5 months). The two segments are discussed in many other Scriptures such as in Mark 13 ... with the 1st segment being two and half months and that of the Political Beast, and the 2nd segment being the remaining two and half months and that of Antichrist (Religious Beast) coming in to "heal" the deadly wound of the Political (one world system) Beast. Satan is going to come in "bringing peace". He is coming peacefully and prosperously, whereas Christ is not coming to bring peace in the 7th Trump (but a sword). This Religious Beast (Antichrist) is going to bring about the tribulation of the Elect. The second tribulation will be for all those deceived at the point that the One True Christ returns in the 7th Trump. Revelation 13 outlines just how miraculous that Religious Beast is going to be and what he will be able to do. The one thing he will not be able to do is touch one hair on the Elect's head, Revelation 2:10 & Revelation 9:4-5.

Matthew 10:34 Think not that I am come to send peace on earth: I came not to send peace, but a sword.

Satan's Plan: The 6th vs 7th Trumps

Satan is going to replicate the 2nd Advent as much as possible and in miraculous ways. So much so that God had to shorten the time from seven years to five months, or even His elect would be deceived. It will be a time

of wonders and peace following turmoil. Loved ones will be delivering up loved ones to him (Satan as Christ ... Antichrist) because they will believe that he is Christ. They will be delivering those they care most about to Death (that is to say Satan) because they will be bewildered as to why God revering people are not worshiping him. While this won't be a pleasant time, it will be the tribulation God has prepared us for and will protect us through.

We as flesh humans need comfort in everything. Not the least of which is a definite "how do I know I'm doing the right thing?" reassurance. God even has provided us that beyond telling us exactly how everything is going to go down. Here it is: **If you are not in your spiritual bodies, Christ isn't here!** It's that simple. If you are in your flesh bodies, it doesn't matter what Christ like being is performing what miracles ... it won't be Christ!

Delivered Up & The Unforgivable Sin

Those "taken" which is to say deceived and believing that Satan as Antichrist is the one true Christ will naturally "deliver up" their loved ones who are not deceived and not worshiping Satan, because they truly believe Satan as Christ. Remember that unless you have eyes to see and ears to hear, this deception is probable. Mark 13:12 & Luke 21:16

Matthew 10:21 And the brother shall deliver up the brother to death, and the father the child: and the children shall rise up against their parents, and cause them to be put to death.

Satan is referred to as "death" in numerous Scriptures because he is death. To follow him is to be judged to the second death which is the death of the soul (**Revelation 21:4; 8**). This second death is permanent and is a blotting out for eternity and won't happen until Judgment Day following the Millennium and final testing.

Being delivered up to the synagogue of Satan (or to Death) is a part of the Elect's job and not something to fear or plan for what to say. The witness here is to allow the Holy Spirit to speak through you and not premeditate what you will say. **The Unforgivable Sin** is not letting the Holy Spirit speak through you when you are delivered up. Pentecost Day was given as an example of how this will work in **Acts 2**. Speaking in tongues is *not* speaking gibberish. The Holy Spirit speaking through someone is that everyone can in every tongue understand what is spoken, even in their own dialect (So when you witness folks standing and speaking nonsense and gibberish and it is not understood by anyone or everyone in every language, you can be guaranteed it is not of the Holy Spirit. ... the Holy Spirit does not need a translator). This will be the ultimate witness and is a part of God's Plan before His coming in the 7th Trump. **Matthew 10:17-20**; **Mark 13:11**; **Luke 21:12-15**

Luke 12:10-12 And whosoever shall speak a word against the Son of man, it shall be forgiven him: but unto him that blasphemeth against the Holy Ghost [Spirit] it shall not be forgiven. And when they bring you unto the synagogues, and unto magistrates, and powers, take ye no thought how or what thing ye shall answer, or what ye shall say: For the Holy Ghost shall teach you in the same hour what ye ought to say."

Chapter Four Bits 'n' Bobs

TRUMPS, SEALS, PARABLES, Christ's Birth, Passover versus Easter, and other answers from Scripture. All the rest dissected past The Beginning, God's Plan, and Satan's Plan.

Basic Calendar Facts

God's Calendar / Christ's Birth / Feasts of the Lord versus Traditions of Men Holidays / Christ our Passover

To understand the appointed Feasts of the Lord, one must understand the consistency of God's Calendar. God was very specific about there being only three High Holy Days each year. *Traditions of Men* are not of God; nor, do the practiced holidays adhere to God's instruction. They do, however, adhere to that of the pagan traditions and rituals. Following is a dissection of God's calendar, Christ's birth, God's appointed times and feasts, Origins of the big two traditional holidays, and Christ our Passover.

CALENDAR HISTORY

- 46 BC Julius Caesar created a calendar known as the Julian Calendar (went into effect in 45 BC), but it had a flaw that was later corrected by Pope Gregory XIII.
- ➤ 1582 AD The Gregorian Calendar was created by Pope Gregory XIII, about 1,600 years after the Julian Calendar, and fixed the Julian Calendar by:
 - Chopping off 10 days;
 - Dropping the leap years in every double decimal year so as not to have to drop 10 additional days at a later time;
 - Leap Years dropped in 1700/1800/1900 but were not dropped in 2000 (for example), because it was caught up at that time (and adhered to the mathematical formula which determines which of those divisible years have a leap year).
- Even though the Gregorian (western, most common) Calendar is a solar calendar, the determination for some traditional holiday dates, such as Easter, are figured by lunar cycle. The Lunar Calendar, and lunar cycle-based dating, is inconsistent, and why such traditional timing/holidays as Easter are at different times each year.

GOD'S CALENDAR

God's Calendar is based on the Solar Calendar, and its dating is consistent from year to year. The Spring Equinox brings in the new year, and all Biblical timing is based on that starting point for each new year. Worth a mention that throughout the Bible when sun/days is utilized it is referring to God's timeline (and/or prophecy related to God's plan/children) versus when moon/night is utilized it is referring to Satan's timeline/prophecy.

- To align the present-day Gregorian Calendar to God's Calendar:
 - March 20/21st = Spring Equinox
 - Spring Equinox + 14 days = 15th day of the New Year, which is Passover (both the original Passover and the one in which Christ was crucified becoming the Passover for which we now celebrate)
 - The Solar Calendar is divided by seven 50's (50-day periods) = 350 days + 15 days from the New Year (Spring Equinox) = 365-day calendar year
 - The seven 50's is how to track the seven Sabbaths of Leviticus as well as know when the three designated appointed feasts of the Lord were to take place (at the same time each year)
 - There are 24 courses the priests were to do each calendar year, and they were similarly accounted for (two a month)
 - There are three Feasts of the Lord to keep each year:
 Feast of Unleavened Bread (Passover), Feast of First
 fruits (Pentecost), Feast of Ingathering (Feast of
 Tabernacles)

An Example of the 2019 Calendar in Alignment with God's Calendar:

Month Order / Roughly Dated:

- \rightarrow Abib/Nisan = 3/20/19 4/19/19
- ightharpoonup Zif = 4/20/19 5/18/19
- \triangleright Sivan = 5/19/19 6/17/19
- Arr Thammuz = 6/18/19 7/16/19
- Ab = 7/17/19 8/15/19
- \triangleright Elul = 8/16/19 9/13/19
- ightharpoonup Tisri = 9/14/19 10/13/19
- \rightarrow Bul = 10/14/19 11/11/19
- ➤ Chileu = 11/12/19 12/11/19
- ightharpoonup Tebeth = 12/12/19 1/9/20
- ightharpoonup Shebat = 1/10/20 2/8/20
- \rightarrow Adar = 2/9/20 3/19/20

Feasts of the Lord Scripture References:

- ➤ Exodus 12:14 23
- Exodus 23:14 19
- ➤ Exodus 34:18 22
- ➤ Leviticus 23:1 44
- Leviticus 25
- ➤ Numbers 28:16 25
- ➤ Numbers 28:26 31
- ➤ Numbers 29:1 40

One Full Year:

- First Day of New Year = 3/20/19 + 14 days = Passover
- Arr Passover = 4/3/19 4/10/19 (7 days)
- Passover + 50 days = Pentecost (1st 50 set of days)
- Pentecost = 5/23/19
- Pentecost + 50 days = 7/12/19 (2nd 50 set of days)
- > 7/12/19 + 50 days = 8/31/19 = Feast of Trumpets (3rd set of 50 days)
- Feast of Trumpets + 10 days = 9/10/19 = Atonement
- Atonement + 5 days = Feast of Tabernacles 9/15/19
- Feast of Tabernacles + 7 days = Fall Equinox 9/23/19
- > 8/31/19 + 50 days = 10/20/19 (4th 50 set of days)
- \triangleright 10/20/19 + 50 days = 12/9/19 (5th 50 set of days)
- \triangleright 12/9/19 + 50 days = 1/28/20 (6th 50 set of days)
- \rightarrow 1/28/20 + 50 days = 3/19/20 (7th 50 set of days)



September 29th Christ was Born....

September 29th is when Christ was born and therefore a very special day indeed! His spirit did in fact begin to dwell with us at His conception, which was December 25th.

Luke 1:1-56 is the genealogy of Mary and therefore Christ, and the timeline of Christ's conception—not birth; an in-depth breakdown is provided in *Appendix 179 from The Bullinger King James Companion Bible*. Some of my notes from Pastor Arnold Murray's "Christmas" lecture

follows (complete lecture – tape/cd can be ordered through *The Shepherd's Chapel*).

Zacharias was a Levitical priest thereby making Mary's cousin Elisabeth a full Levite as well. Both Zacharias and Elisabeth were mature in age and had no children. The angel, Gabriel, appeared before Zacharias (at the time of incense) and delivered the news unto him that his prayers had been heard and that Elisabeth would bear him a son—who would be named John (John the Baptist). Zacharias asked for a sign, so Gabriel announced that he would be unable to speak until the day that those things would be performed (since he did not believe Gabriel's (God's) words). The appearance of Gabriel took place during 'the order of his (Zacharias) course' — the course of Abia. This would have been the time which Zacharias could not travel (June 13th – 19th). These days lasted until June 20th. At which time Zacharias returned home and Elisabeth conceived (John the Baptist) on June 23rd or 24th.

Elisabeth hid herself for five months (until November 24th). In the sixth month, Gabriel was sent from God to Nazareth (of Galilee) to inform Mary that she would bring forth a Son, Jesus Christ. Christ's conception was on December 25th (Jesus was born on September 29th). Upon conception of Christ, Mary ran to tell Elisabeth (her cousin) the news and John (the Baptist) leapt in Elisabeth's womb because of the presence of Christ. Christ began dwelling with us on earth (in Mary's womb) on December 25th.

Elisabeth, being of the daughters of Aaron, was a full blood Levite; and being the cousin of Mary, whose mother would have been a full blood Levite – made Mary half Levite. Mary's father was of the Tribe of Judah, making Mary half of the Tribe of Judah in addition to that of half the

Tribe of Levi. Also notice the genealogy in Luke 3:23 is of "in-laws"; rather than the language of "begat" it is the language of "was supposed" or "by law" meaning in-law.

John the Baptist was six months old when Christ was born; therefore, the conception of Elisabeth would have been six months preceding the conception of Christ.

For a complete breakdown of the course of Abia, timelines, and further proof of Christ being born in September versus the winter month of December read the text in Appendix 179 from The Bullinger King James Companion Bible.



Christmas Tradition

SATURNALIA HOLIDAY

The week-long Roman holiday of Saturnalia was a pagan festival celebrated each year from December 17-25. Saturnalia was in celebration of the Roman agricultural god Saturn during the winter solstice. There is evidence that these celebrations began in Rome around 500 B.C.; however, in researching the festival practices themselves, they are linked to pagan rituals beginning with the Sumerians. The festivities centered around intoxication, gorging on food, going from house to house singing naked, rape, sexual orgies, and ending on December 25th with a human sacrifice. Gift giving and merrymaking made it one of the most popular and jolliest celebrations. The pagan rituals were a part of many cultures for millennia (from c. 3500 BC onward).

The custom of dating Christ's birthday as December 25th did not start until the incorporation of the Saturnalia holiday into the Roman church around the 4th century A.D. The church agreed to keep most of the pagan rituals to appease the citizens and Saturnalia (including human sacrifices through 1466 with Pope Paul II) and what we know as Christmas today was established. From the Ashtoreth worship of the pagans before Christ, was the worship of the Christmas tree brought forth. Norse mythology brought forth the mistletoe and its sexual reference in pagan rituals. The celebration of the Bishop of Myra, Nicholas, was morphed into the Santa Claus we know today by way of Turkey and German pagan worship through to 1800's Knickerbocker History by Washington Irving to the 1822 publication by Dr. Clement Moore of "The Night Before Christmas" (changing the tradition of Nicholas on a flying horse to that of reindeer) to the late 1800 Thomas Nast illustrations that finally led to the 1931 Coca Cola commercialization of what we now identify as Santa Claus. Santa and his elves are the modernized version of long-ago pagan traditions. Just a light bit of digging into any single "Christmas" tradition, one finds the horror that lies in the pagan traditions from which they come.

CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY

The word "Christmas" has come to mean (through ignorance and thought to mean) "the birth of Christ" by way of glossed over history. Its origin is "Christ-Mass". The word "mass" has many meanings, not the least of which is the "death sacrifice". "Christmas" then translates to "death of Christ". In understanding the origins of why we celebrate Christmas on the final day of the Saturnalia festival, then we can understand a little more about it not having much to do with the truth of Christ's birth or Him.

Today the tradition of Christmas is centered around the "idea" of it being Christ's birth and the celebration of His birthday. While He did begin dwelling with us in December at the time of His conception, he was not born until September. At the time of His conception and birth, it was customary to count conception as the start of life. To that end, there is nothing wrong with celebrating His dwelling with us in December. There is, however, a fundamental misappropriation of God's instructions regarding pagan practices, in that every tradition centered around Christmas (down to the gift giving) is of pagan origin. Further, God set forth specific High Holy days for us to honor and keep and the way in which to keep them, and not a one instruction has any part of how we celebrate Christmas or Easter. Satan has done a very good job of thwarting the abundance of truth being sought, known, and practiced. He has inserted pagan traditions and the misconstruing of God's instructions throughout all of history to the epic proportions they are today. At least in the 1600's it was deemed illegal to worship Christmas by a large sect of Christians as they knew the pagan origins. Today is a far fewer number willing to look beyond the traditions to uncover the truth behind them.

Satan twists God's Truth and Word to the ignorance and false worship of as many people as possible to turn them from God and towards him. He does this through the mistranslations and misteachings of God's Word through the church itself. It is easy to persuade folks too with food, festivities, and sound good lies.



First Passover In Egypt

Let's pick the story up with that final plague that God was about to bring down on the Egyptians.

Exodus 11:1 (And the Lord said unto Moses, "Yet will I bring one plague more upon Pharaoh, and upon Egypt; afterwards he will let you go hence: when he shall let you go, he shall surely thrust you out hence altogether.

Exodus 11:4-6 And Moses said, "Thus saith the Lord, About midnight will I go out into the midst of Egypt: And all the firstborn in the land of Egypt shall die, from the firstborn of Pharaoh that sitteth upon his throne, even unto the firstborn of the maidservant that is behind the mill; and all the firstborn of beasts. And there shall be a great cry throughout all the land of Egypt, such as there was none like it, nor shall be like it any more.

So here is where things are: The Egyptians were saved by God (using Joseph) 235 or 236 years prior (from when he was sold by his brothers), and they had benefited from the many blessing of the Israelites' presence in Egypt (only by God and His use of Joseph did the Egyptians survive the 7-year famine). But, in having forgotten the history of the Israelites being with them in the land of Egypt, the Egyptians felt threatened by them and made them slaves and killed their male born infant sons (Exodus 1). The Egyptians (as a whole) did not follow God or have regard for His followers at that time. Nine plagues into this ordeal, God was demonstrating 1) He was the one true God; 2) relaying the example of human nature and how that plays out; 3) that if you follow God's rules your life (in this case children's lives) would be saved; 4) bringing about the justice of "an eye

for an eye" in the killing of the children (Israelites by Egyptians, and then Egyptians by God).

Exodus 12:1-14 And the Lord spake unto Moses and Aaron in the land of Egypt, saying, "This month shall be unto you the beginning of months: it shall be the first month of the year to you. Speak ye unto all the congregation of Israel, saying, 'In the tenth day of this month they shall take to them every man a lamb, according to the house of their fathers, a lamb for an house: And if the household be too little for the lamb, let him and his neighbour next unto his house take it according to the number of the souls; every man according to his eating shall make your count for the lamb. Your lamb shall be without blemish, a male of the first year: ye shall take it out from the sheep, or from the goats: And ye shall keep it up until the fourteenth day of the same month: and the whole assembly of the congregation of Israel shall kill it in the evening. And they shall take of the blood, and strike it on the two side posts and on the upper door post of the houses, wherein they shall eat it. And they shall eat the flesh in that night, roast with fire, and unleavened bread; and with bitter herbs they shall eat it. Eat not of it raw, nor sodden at all with water, but roast with fire; his head with his legs, and with the purtenance thereof. And ye shall let nothing of it remain until the morning; and that which remaineth of it until the morning ye shall burn with fire. And thus shall ye eat it; with your loins girded, your shoes on your feet, and your staff in your hand; and ye shall eat it in haste: it is the Lord's passover. For I will pass through the land of Egypt this night, and will smite all the firstborn in the land of Egypt, both man and beast; and against all the gods of Egypt I will execute judgment: I am the Lord. And the blood shall be to you for a token upon the houses where ye are: and when I see the blood, I will pass over you, and the plague shall not be upon you to destroy you, when I smite the land of Egypt. And this day shall be unto you for a memorial; and ye shall keep it a feast to the Lord throughout your generations; ye shall keep it a feast by an ordinance for ever.

There was no guarantee that the death plague would pass over the Israelites just because they were Israelites. They had to obey God's command, a call to action, in order for them to be saved from the death plague. Much like today, we must believe on Christ as our Savior and follow Him for our souls to be saved from eternal death. So, you can see why I started here, in part, as Jesus became our Passover, the lamb slain, His blood sacrificed and used to wash away our sins. Also note that God expects us to be ready (loins girded, shoes on, staff in hand) to act upon His command. To truly be ready to act you must be educated on what that entails, God's Word has the instructions, from beginning to end! II Timothy 3:16-17; II Timothy 2:15; Amos 8:11

Exodus 12:23-28 For the Lord will pass through to smite the Egyptians; and when He seeth the blood upon the lintel, and on the two side posts, the Lord will pass over the door, and will not suffer the destroyer to come in unto your houses to smite you. And ye shall observe this thing for an ordinance to thee and to thy sons for ever. And it shall come to pass, when ye be come to the land which the Lord will give you, according as He hath promised, that ye shall keep this service. And it shall come to pass, when your children shall say unto you, 'What mean ye by this service?' That ye shall say, 'It is the sacrifice of the Lord's passover, Who passed over the houses of the children of Israel in Egypt, when He smote the Egyptians, and delivered our houses.'" And the People bowed the head and worshipped. And the children of Israel went away, and did as the Lord had commanded Moses and Aaron, so did they.

Simply put, it was called "passover" at that time because the death angel "passed over" those in obedience of God's command. It is called "passover" now because Christ became our passover when he died on the Cross.

"Choosing" to follow a tradition is not the issue. "Servitude" in following traditions is the core of the issue. And beyond that, justifying holding onto dysfunction and outside of reality (and against self, others, universal natural law) to participate in 'the name of tradition' is very much an issue. Blindly following traditions absent examination, is not the best choice. — "No Excuses for Your Best Life In Manageable Chunks"



Easter vs Passover

Acts 12:4 is the only place in the KJV Bible that *Easter* is mistranslated from the Greek word *pascha* (*Strong's 3957*) which when properly translated is *Passover*. Pascha is correctly translated as *Passover* in every other place in the KJV Bible (roughly 28 other passages in just the New Testament). Pascha is the Greek word and means the same as it does in the Hebrew word **pecach** (*Strong's 6453*) which is to say Passover.

"Easter" comes from *Ishtar* and was a pagan goddess (queen) and as just one of the tales goes (there are many pagan names and origin stories through the years and cultures originating with the Sumerians): was from heaven and fell in an egg that the fish rolled to the earth, and she hatched. The queen of fertility. The practice is pagan, idolatry practice. The practice was for a woman at least once to participate in an orgy in this fertility

ritual and the "easter egg" was symbolized in this spring festival years before Christ. Quick like a bunny, another fertility ritual reference.

Jeremiah 7:17-20 Seest thou not what they do in the cities of Judah and in the streets of Jerusalem? The children gather wood, and the fathers kindle the fire, and the women knead their dough, to make cakes to the queen of heaven, and to pour out drink offerings unto other gods, that they may provoke Me to anger. Do they provoke Me to anger? saith the Lord: do they not provoke themselves to the confusion of their own faces? Therefore thus saith the Lord God; Behold, Mine anger and My fury shall be poured out upon this place, upon man, and upon beast, and upon the trees of the field, and upon the fruit of the ground; and it shall burn, and shall not be quenched."

The "queen of heaven" referenced in verse 18 was the goddess to whom the worship was offered, Ishtar (also known as Ashtoreth). (compare II Kings 21:3; 23:12-13 as well as Appendix 42 from The Bullinger King James Companion Bible)

Ashtoreth / Ashtaroth / Ashteroth / Ashterathite / Beeshterah is a god of the Philistines, Phoenicians, and Zidonians and Hebrew number 6252 Ashtarowth derived from 6251 Ashterah also; 6253 Ashtoreth in The New Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible meaning the name of a Sidonian deity, the Phoenician goddess of love.

Webster's New World College Dictionary:

> "Astarte... a Semitic goddess of fertility and sexual love, worshiped by the Phoenicians and others: see also ASHTORETH, ISHTAR."

- ➤ "Ashtoreth... the ancient Phoenician and Syrian goddess of love and fertility: identified with ASTARTE."
- ➤ "Ishtar... see ASHTORETH... the goddess of love, fertility, and war."

Ezekiel 8:15-18 Then said He unto me, "Hast thou seen this, O son of man? turn thee yet again, and thou shalt see greater abominations than these." And He brought me into the inner court of the Lord's house, and, behold, at the door of the temple of the Lord, between the porch and the altar, were about five and twenty men, with their backs toward the temple of the Lord, and their faces toward the east; and they worshipped the sun toward the east. Then He said unto me, "Hast thou seen this, O son of man? Is it a light thing to the house of Judah that they commit the abominations which they commit here? for they have filled the land with violence, and have returned to provoke Me to anger: and, lo, they put the branch to their nose. Therefore will I also deal in fury: Mine eye shall not spare, neither will I have pity: and though they cry in Mine ears with a loud voice, yet will I not hear them."

with their backs toward the temple of the Lord, and their faces toward the east; and they worshipped the sun toward the east.": Having their "backs to the temple of the Lord" speaks for itself. They had their backs toward the Lord and their faces toward the east toward the sun rising. Worship of the sun is a form of idolatry seen as early as Job 31:26-27 and in Deuteronomy 4:19; adopted as early as King Asa (II Chronicles 14:2-5); abolished by King Josiah (II Kings 23:5, 11).

→ "the branch to their nose": The branch is the Asherah, represented by a branch cut to a phallic shape as referenced in Appendix 42 from The Bullinger King James Companion Bible.

How many early morning "Easter Sunrise Church Services" or egg hunts have you attended? Once you know better, do better as God holds you accountable differently once you know the difference. Once knowledge is revealed and you have understanding, it is a reality that you are then held accountable for and not that of hope or faith. **Ezekiel 18:30-32**; **Romans 8:24-26**



Christ Became Our Passover

I Corinthians 5:7-8 Purge out therefore the old leaven, that ye may be a new lump, as ye are unleavened. For even Christ our Passover is sacrificed for us: Therefore let us keep the feast, not with old leaven, neither with the leaven of malice and wickedness; but with the unleavened bread of sincerity and truth.

The Passover that we keep today at the same time as that First Passover (**Deuteronomy 16:1**) when the death angel passed over the Israelites in Egypt, which is to say 14 days following the new year (the first month of Abib later Nisan (**Leviticus 23:5**) according to God's Calendar which correlates to the end of our March/first of April). It is no coincidence that Christ was crucified at the exact dates of Passover remembrance as He became our Passover. His sacrifice on the Cross was so that the 2nd death

(spiritual death ... 1st death is flesh death) could pass over us if we but just believe that Christ died for our sins and rose again. Christ nailed to the Cross the blood ordinances covering our sin if we take the action of believing and repenting.

Colossians 2:14-17 Blotting out the handwriting of ordinances that was against us, which was contrary to us, and took it out of the way, nailing it to His cross; And having spoiled principalities and powers, He made a shew of them openly, triumphing over them in it. Let no man therefore judge you in meat, or in drink, or in respect of an holy day, or of the new moon, or of the sabbath days: Which are a shadow of things to come; but the body is of Christ.

Hebrews 10:16-18 "This is the covenant that I will make with them after those days, saith the Lord; I will put My laws into their hearts, and in their minds will I write them; And their sins and iniquities will I remember no more." Now where remission of these is, there is no more offering for sin.

Romans 3:31 Do we then make void the law through faith? God forbid: yea, we establish the law.

Hebrews 9:11-14 But Christ being come an High Priest of good things to come, by a greater and more perfect tabernacle, not made with hands, that is to say, not of this building; Neither by the blood of goats and calves, but by His own blood He entered in once into the holy place, having obtained eternal redemption for us. For if the blood of bulls and of goats, and the ashes of an heifer sprinkling the unclean, sanctifieth to the purifying of the flesh: How much more shall the blood of Christ, Who through the eternal Spirit offered Himself without spot to God, purge your conscience from dead works to serve the living God?

The Old Testament had laws (commandments and health laws), ordinances and statutes. Christ nailed the blood ordinances from the Old Testament to the Cross. Those blood ordinances were the animal sacrifices for their sins, atonements, etc. Thankfully, we do not have to practice those anymore and we just must ask repentance for our sins as Christ died for those sins. He was our ultimate blood sacrifice. Christ did not nail the laws to the Cross. The commandments are still very much in effect today as they were in the Old Testament times prior to Christ. We are not saved through obedience to these laws; only through faith and belief in Christ's sacrifice on the Cross affords us this. Note however, that we can only take our works (and our unrepented sins) with us when we die, so obeying and repenting are a part of how clean our slate is on Judgment Day. (Revelation 14:13; Romans 3:28-31; Ephesians 2:8-10; Acts 3:19) The health laws from Leviticus 11 are not laws against our souls but against our flesh bodies. God created our flesh bodies, and He knew what would make those bodies sick. Christ's sacrifice on the Cross did not alter how our flesh bodies function, and we are to follow God's instruction to maintain a healthy body.

Matthew 5:17-19 Think not that I am come to destroy the law, or the prophets: I am not come to destroy, but to fulfill. For verily I say unto you, Till heaven and earth pass, one jot or one tittle shall in no wise pass from the law, till all be fulfilled. Whosoever therefore shall break one of these least commandments, and shall teach men so, he shall be called the least in the kingdom of heaven: but whosoever shall do and teach them, the same shall be called great in the kingdom of heaven.

Christ our Savior became our Passover and our Sabbath (**Hebrews 4**), believe on Him, and take rest (and peace) in Him, in His Word, knowing that He died for our sins if we but repent on them and will therefore abide by Him in Heaven! **I John 5:12-13**; **Ecclesiastes 12:7**

Titus 3:4-7 But after that the kindness and love of God our Saviour toward man appeared, Not by works of righteousness which we have done, but according to His mercy He saved us, by the washing of regeneration, and renewing of the Holy Ghost, [Spirit] Which He shed on us abundantly, through Jesus Christ our Saviour; That being justified by His grace, we should be made heirs according to the hope of eternal life.

John 3:16 For God so loved the world, that He gave His only begotten Son, that whosoever believeth in Him should not perish, but have everlasting life.

Nailed To The Cross

Christ's blood washes away our sins if we but repent. His blood and body became the replacement for the blood ordinances (sacrifices) of the Old Testament. What He nailed to the Cross when He was crucified (sacrificed) was just that, those blood ordinances and not the entire Book of the Law.

Christ Is Our Passover

Hebrews 2:9-18 But we see Jesus, Who was made a little lower than the angels, for the suffering of death, crowned with glory and honour, that He by the grace of God should taste death for every man. For it became Him,

for Whom are all things, and by Whom are all things, in bringing many sons unto glory, to make the Captain of their salvation perfect through sufferings. For both He That sanctifieth and they who are sanctified are all of One: for which cause He is not ashamed to call them brethren, Saying, "I will declare Thy Name unto My brethren, in the midst of the church will I sing praise unto Thee." And again, "I will put my trust in Him." And again, "Behold, I and the children which God hath given Me." Forasmuch then as the children are partakers of flesh and blood, He also Himself likewise took part of the same; that through death He might destroy him that had the power of death, that is, the devil; And deliver them who through fear of death were all their lifetime subject to bondage. For verily He took not on Him the nature of angels; but He took on Him the seed of Abraham. Wherefore in all things it behoved Him to be made like unto His brethren, that He might be a merciful and faithful High Priest in things pertaining to God, to make reconciliation for the sins of the people. For in that He Himself hath suffered being tempted, He is able to succour them that are tempted.

Hebrews 2:12-13 is quoted from Psalms 22:22, II Samuel 22:3, and Isaiah 8:18 (in bold above). Christ came in the flesh for our salvation. He overcame death, which is to say Satan, by providing us this salvation through believing on Christ. He took away the blood ordinances and allows us to simply repent for our sins through His sacrifice on the Cross and His blood being spilled for us for all times. The Laws are still very much in effect but knowing that we will continue to stumble, we only need to call on Christ.

Hebrews 10:4-14 For it is not possible that the blood of bulls and of goats should take away sins. Wherefore when He cometh into the world, He saith,

"Sacrifice and offering Thou wouldest not, but a body hast Thou prepared Me: In burnt offerings and sacrifices for sin Thou hast had no pleasure. Then said I, Lo, I come (in the volume of the book it is written of Me) to do Thy will, O God." Above when He said, "Sacrifice and offering and burnt offerings and offering for sin Thou wouldest not, neither hadst pleasure therein;" which are offered by the law; Then said He, "Lo, I come to do Thy will, O God." He taketh away the first, that He may establish the second. By the which will we are sanctified through the offering of the body of Jesus Christ once for all. And every priest standeth daily ministering and offering oftentimes the same sacrifices, which can never take away sins: But this Man, after He had offered one sacrifice for sins for ever, sat down on the right hand of God; From henceforth expecting till His enemies be made His footstool. For by one offering He hath perfected for ever them that are sanctified.

In **Hebrews 10:9** (part in bold above) it is stipulated that the initial ordinances (animal sacrifices) for removing the sins of the flesh were removed and replaced with Christ's blood sacrifice on the Cross. Christ our Savior was established in this, His first advent.



God's Timeline

To keep track of history and prophecy, one must understand the difference between **Anno Mundi years** and **Anno Dei reckoning**. Further, one needs a basic understanding of historical timeline mishaps that have created confusion on all historical tracking. Below is a dissection of God's timeline, History timelines.

- "Lo-Ammi" Periods are the periods of time referenced in the Bible when God turned away from His people due to their disobedience and considered them "Not My People".
- ➤ Anno Dei Reckoning means "in God's year" and includes all the periods that were not Lo-Ammi Periods (but does not include any of those Lo-Ammi years).
- Anno Mundi Reckoning means "in the year of the world" and does not take into consideration the fact that God's given dates/years do not include certain periods of time (so, they would include all Lo-Ammi Periods).
- Cardinal Numbers = How Many
- Ordinal Numbers = Position

For a complete understanding of Periods and Timelines of the Bible be sure to check out *The Bullinger King James Companion Bible Appendixes* 50 and 86. In doing so, you'll notice that the dates are not in agreement with most other Bible sources' times (not that most Bible sources are even in agreement with Biblical or Historical dating for which Bullinger explains why). Example, most sources note that the Assyrian Captivity of the 10 Northern Tribes took place in 722 BC, but it took place in 611 BC. Another would be that of the Babylonian Captivity of the Southern Tribes in 587 BC as opposed to 477 BC.

Paul used Anno Mundi Reckoning in Acts 13:17-22 (see page 41 of The Bullinger King James Companion Bible Appendix 50.6 regarding reference explanation): "...I Kings 6:1, that Solomon's temple was commenced "in the four hundred and eightieth year after the children of Israel were come out of the land of Egypt;" while in Acts 13:17-22 the same period amounts to 573

years; a difference of ninety-three years." Note that for Anno Dei Reckoning (In God's Year) that there is a difference of 93 years if between 1431-788 BC and a difference of 110-113 years if between 788-1 BC.

Dates:

- The Exodus 1491 BC (Tabernacle set up in 1490 BC)
- Entry Into Promised Land 1451 BC
- First Servitude 1431 BC for 8 years (Mesopotamia)
- Second Servitude 1383 BC for 18 years (Moab)
- Third Servitude 1285 BC for 20 years (Canaan)
- Fourth Servitude 1225 BC for 7 years (Midian)
- Fifth Servitude 1120 BC for 40 years (Philistine)
- First through Fifth Servitudes = 93 years of Lo-Ammi Periods (Not My People)
- Solomon Reigned 40 years from 920-880 BC
- Temple Began 573 years (Anno Mundi Reckoning, 'in the year of the world') after The Exodus (1491 BC) in 917 BC (Acts 13:17-22) / (480th year with Anno Dei Reckoning, 'in God's year' (I Kings 6:1))
- Athaliah's 6 years of usurpation + the "gap" of 13 years between Amaziah & Uzziah + the "gap" of 1-year regnal years gets you to 113 years (93 years + 20 years)

In the majority of the systems of dating extant, chronologers have ignored, and omitted from their sequence of Anno Mundi years, the ninety-three years included in St. Paul's reckoning in Acts 13:19-22; and also, in the majority of cases, the interregnum and "gaps" in the later Kings of Judah, amounting together to 110-113 years; and, further by accepting the 480th year of I Kings

6:1 as being a cardinal, instead of an ordinal number; and as being an Anno Mundi date, instead of one to be understood according to Anno Dei reckoning. (from The Bullinger King James Companion Bible Appendix 86.1)

A Time

"A time" is 360 years. The seven times punishment from **Leviticus 26:28-46** is 2,520 years.

"The people at Mt. Sinai entered into a solemn covenant with their God and King, for they said, "All that the Lord hath spoken we will do" (Exodus 24:7-8). That is what is known as the first or National Covenant and must not be confused with the Abrahamic Covenant which was made some four hundred years previously and which was unconditional. The Covenant made at Mt. Sinai was made conditional upon the keeping of the Laws, Statutes, Judgments, and Commandments of God.

So we find God laying before His people the conditions of this National Covenant. IF they kept His laws, blessed would they be in all their undertakings; blessed in the city and in the field, in the fruit of the ground, their cattle and flocks, assured of certain victory over their enemies, and there would be no sickness or poverty among the people. BUT, if they did not keep those laws, then the opposite would be the result. All their undertakings would be cursed; there would be crop failures, disease in cattle and in their own bodies, poverty and sickness would overtake them, their enemies would gain the victory over them in battle. All this may be read in the 28th chapter of Deuteronomy, and in the 26th chapter of Leviticus.

Here, God warned Israel that if they persisted in continually breaking His Laws, not only would curses come upon them, He would punish them for seven times, (a time being 360 years, seven times would be 2520 years) and would banish them from the land of Palestine and scatter them among the heathens (like lost sheep) (**Lev. 26:28-46**)." (from E. Raymond Capt, Abrahamic Covenant)

By Anno Dei Reckoning, if we take the fall of Jerusalem in 477 BC and utilize the seven times punishment stated in **Leviticus 26**, then we get the end of such punishment in AD 2043. Just food for thought, if we correlate that date with a 120-year generation from the planting of the fig tree when Israel became a nation again in 1948, then you arrive at AD 2068 (70-year generation would be AD 2018). God's Word has told us all things, and while we do not know exact times for any prophecy, we do have the signs, seasons, and events for which to look and be aware! **Matthew 25:13**

Generations of the Bible

There are three different generations (of time) mentioned in the Bible:

- ➤ The **40-year** generation
- ➤ The **70-year** generation
- ➤ The **120-year** generation

It is worth noting not only how these generational time periods were utilized at the time written, but also how we can use them today to discern signs/seasons/prophesy of the Bible for what's to come.

Matthew 25:13 Watch therefore, for ye know neither the day nor the hour wherein the Son of man cometh.

We will indeed not know the exact time of the 6th Trump prior to its occurrence, but we can certainly watch for the signs told to us in Scripture and be prepared as it begins to unfold.

Mark 13:35-37 Watch ye therefore: for ye know not when the master of the house cometh, at even, or at midnight, or at the cockcrowing, or in the morning: Lest coming suddenly he finds you sleeping. And what I say unto you I say unto all, Watch."



Parable of the Fig Tree

The Parable of the Fig Tree is a vital one to understand, know, and apply because it tells us the time we are in and how close to the end we are. Further, God told us to learn it. The planting of the fig tree was in 1948 when Israel became a nation. If you apply the generations of the Bible to that year and watch for other signs and seasons as outlined in the Bible, it gives you a good idea of where we are in this 5th Trump heading towards the 6th. Mark 13:28-31 & Luke 21:29-33

Matthew 24:32-34 Now learn a parable of the fig tree; When his branch is yet tender, and putteth forth leaves, ye know that summer is nigh: So likewise ye, when ye shall see all these things, know that it is near, even at the doors. Verily I say unto you, This generation shall not pass, till all these things be fulfilled.

The Parable of the Fig Tree is symbolic and sets the parameters of and for this final generation. Fig trees are planted by shoots and not seeds and are symbolic of nations planted at the end of this age. If we take the setting out of the shoots when Israel returned as a nation in 1948 and watch for the leaves that were put forth from there in watching what goes on in that area (let alone the rest of the global government), it gives you a good idea of where we are in God's Word for this final generation. The leaves precede the fruit that comes in harvest time. *The 5 Month Period* is "that summer" and 6th Trump followed by the harvest in the 7th Trump.

Not unlike those that know and follow God's Word and know the Key of David, there are two different kinds of figs. The smyrna fig is the female fig and the good, edible fig. The caprice fig is the male fig and the bad, inedible fig. Knowing good fruit from bad fruit (figuratively speaking, meaning knowing the works as good or bad) is knowing and applying God's Word and discerning what is or is not of Him. The church of Smyrna was one of the seven churches in **Revelation** that God was pleased with because their "fruit" was good as they taught who the Kenites were and God's Word fully.

Jeremiah 24:1-10 The Lord shewed me, and, behold, two baskets of figs were set before the temple of the Lord, after that Nebuchadrezzar king of Babylon had carried away captive Jeconiah the son of Jehoiakim king of Judah, and the princes of Judah, with the carpenters and smiths, from Jerusalem, and had brought them to Babylon. One basket had very good figs, even like the figs that are first ripe: and the other basket had very naughty figs, which could not be eaten, they were so bad. Then said the Lord unto me, "What seest thou, Jeremiah?" And I said, "Figs; the good figs, very good; and the evil, very evil, that cannot be eaten, they are so evil." Again the word of the Lord came unto

me, saying, "Thus saith the Lord, the God of Israel; 'Like these good figs, so will I acknowledge them that are carried away captive of Judah, whom I have sent out of this place into the land of the Chaldeans for their good. For I will set Mine eyes upon them for good, and I will bring them again to this land: and I will build them, and not pull them down; and I will plant them, and not pluck them up. And I will give them an heart to know Me, that I am the Lord: and they shall be My People, and I will be their God: for they shall return unto Me with their whole heart. And as the evil figs, which cannot be eaten, they are so evil; surely thus saith the Lord, So will I give Zedekiah the king of Judah, and his princes, and the residue of Jerusalem, that remain in this land, and them that dwell in the land of Egypt: And I will deliver them to be removed into all the kingdoms of the earth for their hurt, to be a reproach and a proverb, a taunt and a curse, in all places whither I shall drive them. And I will send the sword, the famine, and the pestilence, among them, till they be consumed from off the land that I gave unto them and to their fathers."

Revelation 6:13 And the stars of heaven fell unto the earth, even as a fig tree casteth her untimely figs, when she is shaken of a mighty wind.

The Parable of the Tares

The Parable of the Tares in Matthew 13:24-43 outlines how harvest will go in the 7th Trump/Judgment. The tares are the Kenites (those of the wicked one, Satan) and will be harvested among the wheat and those who follow Christ. That furnace is the second death, blotting out of their souls.

The Parable of the Sower

The Parable of the Sower in Matthew 13:3-23 demonstrates fully that to receive God's Truth with understanding is both a blessing from God as well as ongoing work in God's Word to maintain the blessing. It isn't enough to just hear God's Word, you need to receive it and work in it. Grow it and share it. The "wicked one" is Satan and those who try to pull you away from seeds that are sown and then not grown. Putting worldly standards, practices, traditions, and concerns before God's Truth will prevent seeds from even taking root.



Trumps, Seals, & Vials

The order of the trumps, seals, and vials is important to understanding God's Plan. Following is a dissection of all seven Trumps, Seals, Vials.

All Seals were issued before the 1st Trumpet was sounded as stated in Revelation 8:1-13 and Revelation 7:3.

- > Seals are knowledge / a thing of learning / and do not appear in chronological order
- > **Trumps** are action and they do appear in chronological order
- **Vials** are the wrath of God and do not go on like the others do for extended periods of time / they are poured out at the time of action at the appointed event

The **Seals** must be "sealed" in the minds of those with eyes to see and ears to hear before the end. The **Trumps** are orders to be executed. The **Vials** will all be poured out in the last two Trumps (6th and 7th) and primarily in the last, 7th Trump. (**Revelation 15** & **16**) The first Vial is poured out after the Beast has been worshiped in the 6th Trump. The **5th Trump** is that time of testimony of the Lord (and sealing) and where we find ourselves today. The **6th Trump** is when Satan comes to this earth in place of Christ and lasts 5 months. The **7th Trump** is when Christ comes, and we are all changed to our Spiritual bodies and lasts but a brief moment as we enter into the Millennium for 1,000 years prior to Judgment Day and the 3rd earth/heaven age of eternity.

There are three seals, trumps, and vials that sync with one another. The 5th Seal, the 5th Trump, and the 5th Vial that time of sealing God's Truth in the minds of those with eyes to see and ears to hear. The 6th Seal, the 6th Trump, and the 6th Vial that five-month period of Antichrist. The 7th Seal, the 7th Trump, and the 7th Vial that 2nd Advent when Christ returns. The 5th, 6th, and 7th Trumps are the Woe Trumps.

- > **Seals** are what's going to happen so study God's Word to know what to expect
- > **Trumps** are what's about to happen and God's Word tells us of the signs to watch for to know when they are happening
- Vials are what is happening as they are the time of action

The 7 Vials

Revelation 16 is where you will find the 7 Vials. They are poured out primarily in the 6th and 7th Trumps. Most of the Vials correspond with the plagues in Egypt found in Exodus apart from the 4th Vial which is the only plague that was not experienced by the Egyptians during the Israelite's captivity. The 4th Vial pertains to the end and is the fire of Truth in Revelation 16:8-9.

Since The Two Witnesses will be able to do wondrous and supernatural things while here during the 6th Trump, and since the 6th Vial syncs up with the 6th Trump, it would make sense that the first five Vials would be poured out just before the close of the last two and a half months of the 6th Trump with the two witnesses as instruments (akin to how Moses and Aaron were an instrument in Egypt).

The Two Witnesses

The two witnesses of Revelation 11 will be testifying for Christ against Antichrist for the duration of the two and a half months that Satan is playing Christ. They will have powers beyond what man possesses. The 1,260 days referenced in **Revelation 11:3** is the three and a half years that then got shortened to two and a half months (the three and a half years was the latter half of the seven years in **Daniel**). They will be slain for their testimony at the end of the 6th Trump as outlined in Revelation 11, and they will lay dead for three and a half days before resurrecting bringing in the 7th Trump and the return of Christ. The three and a half days and resurrection following mirrors Christ's death on the Cross and His time dead in the flesh before resurrecting.

So, let's theorize for a moment: There were three people from the Old Testament who were not buried in this 2nd earth age. Two were transfigured (did not die in the flesh, but were "taken" by God), and they were Enoch and Elijah. One died in the flesh but was buried by God (reference the dispute in **Jude 9** between Satan and Michael the archangel), and that was Moses. Of those three, two appeared with Christ on the Mount of Transfiguration, and they were Moses and Elijah, **Matthew 17:3**. It is conceivable that Moses (representing the Law) and Elijah (representing the Prophets (prophecy)) could be those two witnesses on earth during the 6th Trump with supernatural powers bestowed on them by God to testify His Truth against Satan.

Malachi 4:5 Behold, I will send you Elijah the prophet before the coming of the great and dreadful day of the Lord:

Seals & Trumps

Seals are not in chronological order of events that come to pass as the Trumps are. Seals are in order of importance and are a fixed truth (sealed in the mind of what's going to happen). **Revelation 6** is the **Seals** chapter.

Seals ... Ordered by IMPORTANCE, not chronology:

- ➤ 1st Revelation 6:1-2 & Matthew 24:4-5 & Mark 13:5-6: The False Messiah; White Horse; Antichrist; Bow (in the Greek = toxon = cheap fabric imitation); the Fake One
- ➤ 2nd Revelation 6:3-4 & Matthew 24:6-7 & Mark 13:7: Red Horse; Spiritual War; Wars & Rumors of Wars; War of Deception

- 3rd Revelation 6:5-6 & Matthew 24:7 & Mark 13:8: Black Horse; Famines; work all day for one loaf of bread; Famine will always follow war
- 4th Revelation 6:7-8 & Matthew 24:7 & Mark 13:8: Pale Horse; Pestilences; 4 Hidden Dynasties; Death (Satan; poisonous lies and deception of Satan and his offspring, etc.); Death always follows famine
- 5th Revelation 6:9-11 & Matthew 24:8-28 & Mark 13:9-23: Martyrdoms; Testimony; Delivered Up; Souls under the Altar of God for teaching the true Word of God; Satan cannot touch the Anointed; 1st Tribulation (Mark 13:19 affliction = tribulation)
- 6th Revelation 6:12-17 & Matthew 24:29-30 & Mark 13:24-25: Signs in Heaven of Advent; Earthquake/Shaking; Satan Cast Out; Sun Smitten
- > 7th Revelation 6:14-17; 8:1-6 & Matthew 24:30-31 & Mark 13:26-27: Christ Returning (2nd Tribulation); Silence in Heaven (space of 1/2 hour)

Revelation 8-11 is the Trumps chapter and appear in chronological order of occurrence. Trumps (trumpets) are a charge to battle, order to execute action. The Vials (plagues) are a time of action; the appointed event happening. Trumps 1-4 are of Deception. Trumps 5-7 are of Woe. There is only alignment of the 5th, 6th, and 7th Seals, Trumps, and Vials.

Trumps ... in chronological order ... time of action:

1st Revelation 8:7 & Matthew 24:4-5;11 & Mark 13:6 &

- Luke 21:8: Deception of Satan's Lies against God's Truth; False Prophets; Peace Peace Peace Cries
- > 2nd Revelation 8:8-9 & Matthew 24:24 & Mark 13:7-8 & Luke 21:9-10: Deception that comes forth; False Prophets; Great Signs & Wonders: Wars & Rumors of Wars
- > 3rd Revelation 8:10-11 & Matthew 24:6-7 & Mark 13:22-23 & Luke 21:11: Star Fallen; Nation vs Nation; Earthquakes; Great Signs & Wonders; 3rd Part that followed Satan in 1st Earth Age
- > 4th Revelation 8:12-13 & Matthew 24:15 & Mark 13:14 & Luke 21:20: Simulating the Appearance of Christ (sun smitten); Abomination of Desolation
- > 5th Revelation 9:1-12 & Matthew 24:14 & Mark 13:10 & **Luke 21:13**: Satan/Locust Army cast to the earth and given 5 months to torment/test those ignorant of God's Word (at the end of this Trump after sealings are complete)
- > 6th Revelation 9:13-21 & Matthew 24:8-9 & Mark 13:9;11-13 & Luke 21:12-19: Satan Appears for action; Elect delivered up to Antichrist
- > 7th Revelation 10:7; 11:15-19 & Matthew 24:29-31 & Mark 13:24-27 & Luke 21:25-28: Christ Returns; 2nd Advent

4 Hidden Dynasties

The four hidden dynasties are the mechanisms Satan utilizes to bring about a one world government ruling all for the first half of the 6th Trump (first two and half months of that five-month period) before toppling from a

deadly wound, **Revelation 13:3**. The masses will desire a savior which then enters in Antichrist for the last half of the 6th Trump, **Revelation 13:4-8**. Those four "hidden" dynasties are the institutions of Religion, Political, Education, and Economy.

In **Zechariah 1:18-21** those four horns are those four external enemies. Horns represent external power. Dynasties are a line of hereditary rulers, bloodlines. From which *bloodline* (God or Satan) you can measure by the fruit (works) produced. The types and examples of these four dynasties can be found throughout the Bible. One such example and type is that of Nebuchadnezzar in the book of **Daniel**. To bring about that Political Beast of the 6th Trump all four institutions (dynasties) would have to be managed by Satan's minions and his influence over them. All four hidden dynasties (Religion, Political, Education, and Economy) were infiltrated and taken over long ago. All involved with bringing us into that one world political beast system.

Mark of the Beast

The Mark of the Beast is not something you receive from Satan but rather what you know in your forehead and whom you work for (in worship of ... God or Satan). The Mark of the Beast is 666 meaning the 6th Seal, 6th Trump, 6th Vial. To have the Mark of the Beast (Satan) is to worship him as Antichrist thinking he is Christ. To have the Mark in your forehead is again the knowledge, or lack of knowledge and understanding, you have regarding the false christ versus the True Christ. To have the Mark in your right hand (representing your strength in labor) means you are working for Antichrist in service and delivering up to him those that do not worship him.

Revelation 13:16-18 And he [Religious Beast] causeth all, both small and great, rich and poor, free and bond, to receive a mark in their right hand, or in their foreheads: And that no man might buy or sell, save he that had the mark, or the name of the beast, or the number of his name. Here is wisdom. Let him that hath understanding count the number of the beast: for it is the number of a man; and his number is Six hundred threescore and six.

When Satan comes as Antichrist he will arrive as Christ coming in peacefully to heal the deadly wound to the one world government that was the Political Beast of the first half of the 6th Trump. He will not be a human born of woman on the earth prior to sitting on the throne where he ought not because he is not coming in imitation of the 1st Advent but that of the 2nd Advent. **Revelation 13**

Epilogue

GOD TEACHES US discipline in all things. He allows us room to grow and to be the best that we can be and when we go astray, He has the means for getting us back on track. In all cases, we have the ability for growth and blessings.

John 15:1-2 I am the true vine, and My Father is the Husbandman. Every branch in Me that beareth not fruit He taketh away; and every branch that beareth fruit, He purgeth it, that it may bring forth more fruit.

Think about that for a moment considering The Parable of the Talents (**Matthew 25:14-30**). We are the many membered body (branches) of Christ, and if we are not producing good fruit, God will take away and trim us. Even when we produce good fruit, we get harvested so as to produce more fruit. Being tested and growing stronger and more productive in Christ is a blessing in and of itself. (**Jeremiah 6:26-30**) If our metal (silver) isn't up to snuff, then we will be rejected or refined.

Deuteronomy 8:5 Thou shalt also consider in thine heart, that, as a man chasteneth his son, so the Lord thy God chasteneth thee.

Hebrews 12:5-6 And ye have forgotten the exhortation which speaketh unto you as unto children, "My son, despise not thou the chastening of the Lord, nor faint when thou art rebuked of Him: For whom the Lord loveth He chasteneth, and scourgeth every son whom He receiveth."

I Corinthians 10:13 There hath no temptation taken you but such as is common to man: but God is faithful, Who will not suffer you to be tempted above that ye are able; but will with the temptation also make a way to escape, that ye may be able to bear it.

God allows us to be tested and tempted by Satan and the world. The tools for which we succeed are in the discipline we gain through His Word and growth from having our metal tested and proofed. James 1:12-18; I Thessalonians 2:11; Psalms 94:12-14; Proverbs 3:11-12

Psalms 139:23-24 Search me, O God, and know my heart: Try me, and know my thoughts: And see if there be any wicked way in me, And lead me in the way everlasting.

I Peter 2:20 For what glory is it, if, when ye be buffeted for your faults, ye shall take it patiently? but if, when ye do well, and suffer for it, ye take it patiently, this is acceptable with God.

God corrects by allowing turmoil to touch you if you are on the wrong path, but He doesn't cause you to have turmoil ... kiss the paddle and do

better just as a child being corrected by a parent ... God wants you the best you can be! **Deuteronomy 8:5**; **Proverbs 3:11-13**

Jeremiah 23:33-40 And when this people, or the prophet, or a priest, shall ask thee, saying, 'What is the burden of the Lord?' thou shalt then say unto them, 'What burden?' I will even forsake you, saith the Lord. And as for the prophet, and the priest, and the People, that shall say, 'The burden of the Lord,' I will even punish that man and his house. Thus shall ye say every one to his neighbour, and every one to his brother, 'What hath the Lord answered?' and, 'What hath the Lord spoken?' And the burden of the Lord shall ye mention no more: for every man's word shall be his burden; for ye have perverted the words of the living God, of the Lord of hosts our God. Thus shalt thou say to the prophet, 'What hath the Lord answered thee?' and, 'What hath the Lord spoken?' But since ye say, 'The burden of the Lord;' therefore thus saith the Lord; 'Because ye say this word, 'The burden of the Lord,' and I have sent unto you, saying, 'Ye shall not say, 'The burden of the Lord;" Therefore, behold, I, even I, will utterly forget you, and I will forsake you, and the city that I gave you and your fathers, and cast you out of My presence: And I will bring an everlasting reproach upon you, and a perpetual shame, which shall not be forgotten."

James 1:12-18 Temptation is not of God. God cannot be tempted of evil, nor tempt you of evil. You most definitely should not say, "the burden of the Lord" anything. He will also not allow you to be tempted by Satan above what you can handle. **I Corinthians 10:13**

II Corinthians 1:3-4 Blessed be God, even the Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Father of mercies, and the God of all comfort; Who comforteth us

in all our tribulation, that we may be able to comfort them which are in any trouble, by the comfort wherewith we ourselves are comforted of God.

Deuteronomy 4:29-31 But if from thence thou shalt seek the Lord thy God, thou shalt find Him, if thou seek Him with all thy heart and with all thy soul. When thou art in tribulation, and all these things are come upon thee, even in the latter days, if thou turn to the Lord thy God, and shalt be obedient unto His voice; (For the Lord thy God is a merciful God); He will not forsake thee, neither destroy thee, nor forget the covenant of thy fathers which He sware unto them.

Psalms 51:10-13 Create in me a clean heart, O God; And renew a right spirit within me. Cast me not away from Thy presence; And take not Thy Holy Spirit from me. Restore unto me the joy of Thy salvation; And uphold me with Thy free spirit. Then will I teach transgressors Thy ways; And sinners shall be converted unto Thee.

I John 2:15-17 Love not the world, neither the things that are in the world. If any man love the world, the love of the Father is not in him. For all that is in the world, the lust of the flesh, and the lust of the eyes, and the pride of life, is not of the Father, but is of the world. And the world passeth away, and the lust therof: but he that doeth the will of God abideth for ever.

SaltyMO.com

Why SaltyMO?

Salt adds savory flavor to food. Salty attitude means irreverence to status quos and unquestioned traditions. Salty dialogue is seasoned with colorful language making it interesting. Salt cleanses and purifies as well as seasons. In all things be salty and savor life.

Modus Operandi is our operating system. The particular way in which we do life. Salty M.O. is a well seasoned in truth operating system for certain. The way to best function in life is through truth and impeccability.

Links to each of the Books of the Bible and the 198 Appendices of "The Companion Bible" by Bullinger are linked and available for you to view and download for free. Just visit SaltyMO.com.

Physical copies of "The Companion Bible" by Bullinger may be purchased through The Shepherd's Chapel bookstore, Amazon, Christianbook.com, and other retailers.

Also available at SaltyMO.com is a free pdf version of this book, *Scripture Keys for Your Soul Health*. And 'coming soon' to saltymo.com is free access to my typed-up Bible notes Book by Book.



SaltyMo.com

Additional Resources Also by C. A. Gibson

No Excuses for Your Best Life In Manageable Chunks

• Mind, Body, and Soul Answers & Solutions in Manageable Chunks so you can Adult like a Boss. Start where you are and achieve where you want to go in manageable chunks forward. No Excuses!

No Excuses for Your Best Life Workbook Journal

Aesthetic, Lined Journal customized with all of the built in 'prompts' from Mind, Soul, Body Chunks to assist you with your Headspace Examination and goal mapping Your Best Life Journey.

No Excuses for Your Best Life Planner

Weekly and Monthly Calendar Planners to assist you with your Time Management ongoing! Whether you are on a self-care, selfdiscovery, active lifestyle, or family/home management journey, this interactive engagement calendar will help streamline your responsibilities and goals to keep you on track.

No Excuses for Your Best Life Journal

 Blank/Lined Notebook Journals Ideal for journaling, planning, goal tracking, note taking, or as a travel diary, this journal serves as a perfect companion for capturing memories, ideas, goals, and inspirations for Your Best Life Journey.

SaltyMO.com

For all current publications and information be sure to visit www.saltymo.com.

LIVING IN A FUNCTIONAL NON-CODEPENDENT WAY



SaltyMo.com